
Posted Agenda on 11/21/2019 at the Town Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 

Town of West Newbury 

Board of Selectmen 

Monday, November 25, 2019 @ 6pm  
381 Main Street, Town Office Building 

www.wnewbury.org  

AGENDA 
Executive Session: 6pm in the Town Manager’s Office 

❖ MGL Ch. 30A §21(a) 2: To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion personnel or

to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion personnel (personnel updates);

❖ MGL Ch. 30A §21(a) 6: To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if the chair declares

that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the public body (Brown Spring

Farm APR and MOA regarding APR stewardship);

❖ MGL Ch. 30A §21(a) 7: To comply with, or act under the authority of, any general or special law or federal grant-

in-aid requirements (consultation with Town Counsel; MOU with Pentucket re Middle/High School

permitting/inspections).

Open Session:  7pm in the First Floor Hearing Room 

Announcements: 

• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the local cable channels and on

the internet.

• Town Offices closing at 2pm on Thursday, Nov. 27th and closed all day Nov. 28th and Nov. 29th

• Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness – resident survey now online, please participate!

• Draft Memorial Day Parade policy posted to Town website – invitation for public comment

• Notice of Annual Meeting: Parker, Ipswich & Essex River Watersheds Partnership – Dec. 5, 2019

• Comcast correspondence regarding pricing changes

• Opportunities for FY20 Committee appointments posted online at https://www.wnewbury.org/board-

selectmen/pages/2019-20-volunteer-opportunities

Regular Business 

A. Presentation of life saving awards to Sgt. Dan Cena and Officer Rich Parenteau – Police Chief Durand

B. Joint meeting with West Newbury Housing Authority Board to consider joint appointment of Susan

Babb as Interim Housing Authority Board member until the next regular election

C. Request for appointment of Cheryl Grant to Board of Registrars

D. Public Hearing with Board of Assessors: FY2020 Tax Classification Hearing

E. Joint meeting with Board of Health regarding solid waste and recycling, projected FY21 costs

F. 2020 Liquor License Renewals: West Newbury Food Mart; and GN Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a West

Newbury Pizza Company

G. Update on Designer Selection process for Soldiers & Sailors Memorial Building

H. Review of draft updated Committee Charge, Carr Post Building Committee

I. Update on Middle/High School design process; Planning Board request for comments

J. Discussion of FY21 budget process and timeline; discussion of school stabilization funding model and

potential multi-year utilization taking into account projected FY21 debt service

K. Review and approval of updated Board of Selectmen policies

L. Review of proposed revisions to Community Preservation Committee Guidelines

M. Request for authorization to waive 15-day notice and confirmation process and to authorize the Town

Manager to appoint the Building Inspector and DPW Experienced Operator positions

N. Review and approval of Agricultural Preservation Restriction for Brown Spring Farm

O. Review and approval of Stewardship Memorandum of Agreement for Brown Spring Farm

P. Meeting minutes: October 15, 2019; October 28, 2019; November 4, 2019.

Town Manager Updates 

Q. Updates on active projects and near-term priorities

R. Recent meeting with representative from Congressman Moulton’s office re potential Federal grants

S. Follow up meeting assignments; and Placing items for future agendas

1

http://www.wnewbury.org/
http://www.wnewbury.org/
https://www.wnewbury.org/board-selectmen/pages/2019-20-volunteer-opportunities
https://www.wnewbury.org/board-selectmen/pages/2019-20-volunteer-opportunities
finasst
Highlight



 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

978-363-1100 ext. 110 

978-363-1826 (Fax) 

 
 
 

 
MEMORIAL DAY PARADE RULES 

 
Entries: The West Newbury Memorial Day Parade is open to many different 
units, including Pentucket School bands or music groups, color guards, antique 
cars, military vehicles, scouting organizations or community marching units who 
wish to honor our veterans with their participation. The Board shall designate a 
Parade Chairperson to oversee and administer these guidelines, with the support 
of and in coordination with the Town Manager and designated Town personnel. 

 
▪ All parade entries must be in good taste, suitable for a family event and show 

respect to other parade participants and the community in general. Improper 
use of the American flag is strictly prohibited. The Board confers upon the 
Parade Chairperson the right to reject any entry, at any time, deemed by the 
Chairperson to be inappropriate or not representative of this community 
celebration. This includes any and all organized groups that appear to be 
participating for the purpose of protesting for or against a cause. 

▪ The use of lewd or vulgar language is not allowed in the parade at any time. 
Improper language is not to be spoken, nor written on any banners or signs, 
during the procession of the parade, regardless of intent. 

▪ Signs carried or on other items or persons must be specifically related to 
honoring our veterans. For example, you may say “ABC Company Honors 
those who Serve” or “XYZ Associates Honors our Fallen Heroes.” 

▪ Elected officials or candidates for public office cannot wear campaign attire, 
buttons or other advocacy paraphernalia nor can campaign signage be used to 
decorate any vehicle or other items; nor can campaign literature be passed 
out while marching in the Memorial Day Parade. 

▪ Horses and dog units must clean up after the animals as the parade 
progresses. 

▪ Each vehicle must be legally registered, insured and road safe. 

2



MEMORIAL DAY PARADE RULES 
 
 

2 
 

▪ All entries must keep moving and in line of march at all times. No exceptions.  

▪ If you wish to hand out items, the items and the method of distribution must 
be approved by the Parade Chairperson in advance. 

▪ No alcoholic or other intoxicating beverages or controlled substances may be 
consumed, carried, or possessed by parade participants during the event. 

Safety/Security: Due to heightened security awareness, all vehicles are subject to 
search. No real weapons are permitted. Replica weapons must be noted on the 
Entry Form and MUST BE APPROVED by the Parade Chairperson and the West 
Newbury Police Chief. 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN OF TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

_________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
 

 

______________________ 

Date 

3



PARKER, IPSWICH AND ESSEX (PIE) RIVERS WATERSHEDS OF MASSACHUSETTS' NORTH SHORE 

 

 

 

Municipal Vulnerability Program Roundtable
Michelle Rowden & Carolyn Meklenburg, Municipal Vulnerability
Preparedness Program Northeast & Greater Boston Regional
Coordinators

 

Town of Ipswich, Water Neutral Growth Project
Kristen Grubbs and Vicki Halmen, Town of Ipswich Town Planner
and Water Director 
 

Community Based Social Marketing and Water Conservation
Michelle Craddock, Division of Ecological Restoration

 

Howlett Brook Restoration Project 
Colin Lawson and Joel DeStasio,Trout Unlimited National
Kaitlyn Shaw, Ipswich River Watershed Association
 

MS4 Outreach & Education
Margaret Duffy, Greenscapes North
Shore Coordinator
 

 

BARRIER MITIGATION WORKSHOP

@

.org 

PIE-RIVERS PARTNERSHIP 

2019 Annual Meeting 

Thursday, December 5th 8:00 AM to 12:00 PM 

Newbury Town Library,  0 Lunt St, Byfield 

PRESENTATIONS INCLUDE:

Join municipal staff, community volunteers, regional partners and others for a discussion of

environmental initiatives that are strengthening our communities across the North Shore region.

44



5



6



7



8



 A Massachusetts Accredited Agency 

WEST NEWBURY POLICE DEPARTMENT
401 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985  

Phone 978-363-1213 

Fax 978-363-1114 

Jeff Durand, Police Chief 

durand@westnewburysafety.org 

Letter of Commendation 

This Letter of Commendation is presented this 25th day of November, 2019 to Sergeant Daniel 
Cena and Officer Rich Parenteau of the West Newbury Police Department for their lifesaving 
acts assisting a resident who was suffering a heart attack on October 30, 2019. 

Officers responded to the residence and found an unresponsive party in the home. They 
quickly began providing CPR, rescue breathing and defibrillator activation to save the resident. 

This Letter of Commendation is being awarded to both Officers for their display of 
professionalism and commitment to serve the community of West Newbury. 

Sincerely, 

Chief Jeff Durand 

A

9



Notice of Joint Meeting Between 

The West Newbury Board of Selectmen and 

The West Newbury Housing Authority 

November 25, 2019 at 7:00 PM 

First Floor Hearing Room, 381 Main Street 

In accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 41 §11, there will be a joint meeting of 

the Board of Selectmen of the Town of West Newbury and the West Newbury Housing 

Authority to select an interim appointment to fill a vacancy on the West Newbury Housing 

Authority. The appointment will be for a term set to expire at the next Town Election to be held 

on May 4, 2020. A majority vote of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen and the remaining 

members of the West Newbury Housing Authority, in attendance, shall select the candidate at the 

time and place set forth above. 

Posted November 15, 2019 

B

10



11



12



13



14



C

15



TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
ASSESSORS OFFICE 

381 Main Street, West Newbury, Mass. 01985 

TEL: 978-363-1100 x117   FAX: 978-363-1826 

To:   Board of Selectmen 

From:  Meredith Stone, Chief Assessor 

Date:  11/23/2019 

RE:   Estimated Tax Rate 

In anticipation of the Tax Rate Classification Hearing on November 25, 2019, I would 

like you to have the supporting documentation used to explain the tax rate process and 

provide some historical data. 

This attached information is subject to change upon submitting the completed forms to 

the Department of Revenue.  From FY2019 to FY2020 the average tax bill will increase 

by approximately $50.47 per year. The average home will increase in assessed value by 

just over 1.02 % To offset the increase in value and stay within the confines of prop 2 

1/2, the overall tax rate will decrease from $14.57 per thousand to the estimated amount 

of $14.42 per thousand.  For FY20 the average tax bill is expected to be $8,351.23 based 

on an average assessment of $579,142, compared to last year’s average assessment of 

$569,716 and tax bill of $8,300.76. 

This memo is only an estimate and is subject to change.  The final rate will be determined 

by the Department of Revenue once all information and requirements have been met.  

The final requirement is the tax classification hearing voted, signed, and submitted and 

then the DOR will review the rate information. 

D

16



1

Town Manager

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Massachuse

Christopher C. Harding, Commissioner 
Sean R. Cronin, Senior Deputy Commissioner of Local Services 

11/4/2019 

West Newbury Board of Assessors 
Board of Assessors 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

Re: NOTIFICATION OF FINAL CERTIFICATION ‐ West Newbury 

Dear Board of Members: 

The Commissioner of Revenue has determined that the locally assessed values of real and personal property in your 
municipality represent full and fair cash valuation as of January 1, 2019 for fiscal year 2020 and that these proposed 
property assessments satisfy the minimum requirements for certification. 

The Commissioner further certifies that: 

1. All real property has been classified according to its use as of January 1, 2019 as required by Chapter 59, § 2A(b).
2. A majority of the assessors have been qualified to classify property by their

attendance at a classification workshop conducted by the Department of Revenue.

The community must now hold a public hearing on the issue of selecting a residential factor, which will determine the 
percentages of the tax burden to be borne by each class of property for fiscal year 2020. Prior to the hearing, we urge 
you to promote public understanding and discussion of the options available to the town in regard to allocating the tax 
burden among major property classes. The Selectmen or the City Council with the approval of the Mayor may elect a 
factor greater than the minimum residential factor, or a factor of "1" which will result in a uniform allocation of the tax 
burden among all classes of property. In addition, they have the option of granting an open space discount, residential 
exemption and small commercial exemption. 

It appears that you are progressing satisfactorily in complying with your responsibilities under the classification law. It is 
important that you complete the final steps expeditiously so that tax billing will not be delayed. 

If you have further questions or require assistance in completing the final steps for a classified tax system please contact 
the Bureau at (617) 626‐2300. 

17



2

Fiscal Year 2025 Certification Directives: 

In order to prepare for the next scheduled recertification of all real and personal property we are enclosing your 
community's program directives. These directives were made by your Bureau of Local Assessment advisor as a result of 
your FY 2020 certification review. You should have a budget in place for any work that needs to be done two years in 
advance of the next certification to avoid costly delays in obtaining timely certification from the Bureau. 

As you plan and implement your next triennial certification, please consult the Bureau's Certification Standards in the 
Division's website, www.mass.gov/dls, in the Local Assessment section. If you need assistance please call your appraisal 
advisor. 

Sincerely yours, 

Joanne M. Graziano, Chief 

Bureau of Local Assessment 
Massachusetts Department of Revenue 

FY 2025 Directives 
TOWN of West Newbury 

Cyclical Reinspection 
Cyclical inspections of property descriptions should continue over the next 8 years, and be fully completed by FY2026. 
(For further information on cyclical reinspection programs and data quality analysis please refer to the "Certification 
Standards.") 

Exempt Property 
All the exempt real property in the community should be reviewed, updated as needed, and valued using the 
municipality's computer based mass appraisal system. This class should be completed by FY2026. 

Income and Expense Data 
The assessors should continue looking for ways to ensure a better return of Income and Expense data from Commercial, 
Industrial and Apartment property owners. 

Neighborhood Review 
The assessors should review all residential neighborhood delineations in accordance with indicated land value and 
adjust them as needed by the next certification. 

Land Schedules 
The assessors should continually review land values and adjust the land valuation system as needed in a uniform and 
equitable manner. 

Personal Property ‐ Rediscover & Re‐list 
The assessors should again start to rediscover, relist and revalue all business personal property accounts as part of the 
next revaluation. All taxable personal property must be identified and valued in accordance with an appropriate 
appraisal methodology. Cost and depreciation tables need to reflect the current valuation date and be applied to each 
item in an account. With the Assessors just recently completing this portion just before certification, all accounts will 
now need to be inspected between FY2020 and FY2025 (For further information please refer to the "Certification 
Standards".) 

Other Directives 

18



3

Cyclical reinspection report ? The assessors should review the visitation notes to make sure they are clarified in order to 
easily determine the properties visit history status.  

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to 
whom they are addressed. If you have received this mail in error please notify the postmaster at dor.state.ma.us. 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
Fiscal Year 2020 

Classification Presentation 

Presented by: Meredith Stone, MAA Chief Assessor & Board of Assessors 11-25-2019

The Carr Post-Soldiers and Sailors Memorial

1 27



PURPOSE OF THE CLASSIFICATION 
HEARING

MGL Ch. 40 § 56 – Allows a shift in the tax burden
between property classes.

This does not change the total tax levy for the
community; it simply determines the share to be
borne by each class.

2 28



The share of the levy for the Commercial, Industrial 
and Personal Property classes (CIP) may be 
increased by up to 50% as long as the residential and 
open space classes raise at least 65% of what they 
would have raised without the shift.  

If the Minimum Residential Factor would be less than
65%, the community cannot make the maximum shift
and must use a CIP factor less than 1.50.

Approximately 30 % of cities & towns have split rates.

SHIFTING THE BURDEN

3 29



OVERVIEW OF THE REVALUATION & 
CLASSIFICATION PROCESS

Every 5 Years – Assessments must be at 
100% Fair Market Value, certified and audited 
by Mass. Dept. of Revenue

Every Year – Assessors must make interim 
adjustments to be at 100% Fair Market Value, 
certified by Mass. Dept. of Revenue

After Valuation – All properties must be 
classified according to usage

4 30



Once properties have been classified and
certified, the Board of Selectmen hold a
public hearing.

The Board of Assessors present information
to the Board of Selectmen, who then vote
whether to establish different rates, or to
tax all classes of property at the same rate
by adopting a minimum CIP factor of “1”.

5 31



What Happens At The 
Classification Hearing

The Board of Selectmen vote on four different issues

Selection of a CIP Factor

Open Space Discount

Residential Exemption

Small Commercial Exemption

6 32



ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

% Res. vs. % Comm./Ind./PP

97.3187%= Residential/Open Space 0% 

2.6813% = Commercial/Industrial/

Personal Property Minimum Residential 

Make-up of the Comm./Ind. Classes: 
Max % Shift 95.9780-Residential 
Max % Shift 4.0220%

0 % big business

2.6813 small business/ (Mom and Pop)/ Industrial/Impact (Manufacturers)& 
personal property

7 33



Will an increase in the C & I properties 
significantly lower the burden on the Res? NO

Will an increase in the C & I properties slow the 

development of big business, or drive smaller 

businesses out of town? YES

Historically, West Newbury has had a 

residential factor of one (1).  A shift would 

increase business taxes and provide no 

relief for residential taxes
8 34



FOUR CLASSES OF PROPERTY
RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL
PERSONAL
PROPERTY

9 35

http://images.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://img.alibaba.com/photo/10871403/Office_Furnitures.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.alibaba.com/catalog/10871403/Office_Furnitures.html&h=456&w=626&sz=26&hl=en&start=44&tbnid=QR3SDLeUcKNXJM:&tbnh=99&tbnw=136&prev=/images%3Fq%3Doffice%26start%3D40%26gbv%3D2%26ndsp%3D20%26svnum%3D10%26hl%3Den%26sa%3DN


YOUR TAX RATE

Tax Rate is Made up From:
Total taxable real estate and personal property

Town meeting appropriations

State aid

Town Revenues

Expenditures

New Growth

Debt Exclusions and overrides 

10 36



Levy Limit – The Maximum amount the Town can levy 

in a given year.  The levy limit can grow each year by 2 

½ percent of the prior year’s levy limit plus new growth 

and any Proposition 2 ½ overrides. 

Maximum Allowable Levy – This is the Levy Limit 

plus Debt Exclusions or other adjustments allowable.

Excess levy capacity – The difference between the 

levy limit and the actual levy.  When the Board of 

Selectmen sign the LA5 form after the classification 

hearing they also acknowledge that they have been 

advised of any excess levy capacity for that fiscal year.

LEVY LIMIT

11 37



Proposition 2 ½ Override –
Permanent increase above the 2 ½ % 

allowed under Proposition 2 ½.

Debt Exclusion – Temporary increase 

above the 2 ½ % allowed under 

Proposition 2 ½.

OVERRIDES AND DEBT EXCLUSIONS

12 38



New Growth – New Growth is the  increase in property 

values due to:

New construction

Improvements to properties 

Subdivisions 

New Condominiums

Return of exempt property to the tax rolls    

WHAT IS NEW GROWTH?

13 39



New Growth is added to the levy limit and 

increases the Town’s taxing capacity.

It is formulated by multiplying the previous 
years tax rate by the total new growth in value 
for each class.

Must be submitted to the Bureau of Local 

Assessment annually and be certified prior to 

setting the tax rate.  

14 40



FISCAL YEAR 2020 LEVY LIMIT 
CALCULATIONS

**NEW GROWTH & LEVY ARE ESTIMATED**

Fiscal Year 2019 Levy Limit 

Amended FY 2019 New Growth

$13,653,481
$0

Subtotal $13,653,481

2.5% Allowable Levy Increase 

FY 2020 New Growth 

FY 2020 Prop 2 ½ Override 

$341,337 

$143,338
$0

2020 Levy Limit $14,138,156

FY 2020 Debt Exclusions 

FY 2020 Max. Allowable Levy 

$ 627,864 

$14,766,020
15 41



Board of Selectmen
As to the minimum residential factor, the vote should simply be 
something like “The BOS adopts a residential factor of XXX for fiscal 
year 2020,” where XXX is a factor between 1.00 and the minimum 
residential factor. A vote of 1.00 results in a single rate for all classes, 
while the minimum residential factor shifts the legal maximum amount 
of taxes unto the CIP properties.

16 42



SELECTION OF THE RESIDENTIAL 
FACTOR

The minimum residential factor for 
FY2019 98.60676

FY2020 MRF using 150% shift to CIP is

95.9780

For FY2020 the minimum residential 
Factor share in current year using 150% shift 
to CIP 98.6224

17 43



Residential Tax Rate 

2017
2016 $14.63 
2015 $15.69 
2014 $15.80 
2013 $15.75 
2012 $14.83 
2011 $13.68 
2010 $12.92 
2009 $12.08 
2008 $11.34 
2007 $10.79 
2006 $10.16 
2005 $10.17 
2004 $ 9.68 
2003 $12.22 
2002 $11.61 
2001 $11.72 
2000 $12.74 
1999 $13.47 
1998 $14.09 
1997 $14.95 
1996 $14.77 
1995 $15.29 
1994 $15.73 

$15.01 

HISTORIC TAX RATES 

18

Fiscal Year

$14.55
2018 $14.56
2019 $14.57
2020 TBD$14.42

1993
44

assessor
Highlight



DOR 
Code 

Year 
Single Family 

Values 
Single Family 

Parcels 
Average Single Family 

Value  
Single Family 

Tax Bill* 
Rank** 

324 2020 579,142

324 2019 785,068,500 1,378 569,716 8,301

324 2018 738,617,100 1,370 539,137 7,850 51

324 2017 721,692,600 1,362 529,877 7,710 50

324 2016 708,878,300 1,357 522,386 7,643 47

324 2015 644,831,600 1,354 476,242 7,472 47

324 2014 616,881,300 1,344 458,989 7,252 46

19

804,428,300 1,389 8,351

45



CLASS VALUE %

Residential 951,528,646 97.3187 R & O % # of Eligible Parcels0.000000

Open Space 0 0.0000 97.3187 Res Parcel Count 0

Commercial 8,211,185 0.8398 Res Exemption %0.0000

Industrial 2,101,400 0.2149 C I P % Total Res Value Net of Exemption951,528,646

# of Eligible Parcels 0.000000 
Total Value of Eligible Parcels    0 
Comm Exemption %  0.0000 
Total C & I Value 

Exemption 10,312,585Personal Property15,904,090 1.6266 2.6813

Total 977,745,321 100.0000

Levy 14,099,088 e 1.00 1.06

Single TaxRate 14.42 0.44

1.50

Note: This table should be used for planning purposes only. Actual calculations may differ slightly due to rounding. For actual calculations, complete Recap.

CIP Shift Res Factor Res SP OS SP Comm SP Ind SP PP SP Total SP Res LA Comm LA Ind LA PP LA Total LA Res ETComm ET Ind ET PP ET

1.0000 1.0000 97.3187 0.0000 0.8398 0.2149 1.6266 100.0000 13,721,049 118,404 30,299 229,336 14,099,088 14.42 14.42 14.42 14.42

1.0044 0.9999 97.3069 0.0000 0.8435 0.2158 1.6338 100.0000 13,719,386 118,925 30,432 230,345 14,099,088 14.42 14.48 14.48 14.48

1.0088 0.9998 97.2951 0.0000 0.8472 0.2168 1.6409 100.0000 13,717,722 119,446 30,566 231,354 14,099,088 14.42 14.55 14.55 14.55

1.0132 0.9996 97.2833 0.0000 0.8509 0.2177 1.6481 100.0000 13,716,059 119,967 30,699 232,363 14,099,088 14.41 14.61 14.61 14.61

1.0176 0.9995 97.2715 0.0000 0.8546 0.2187 1.6552 100.0000 13,714,396 120,488 30,832 233,372 14,099,088 14.41 14.67 14.67 14.67

1.0220 0.9994 97.2597 0.0000 0.8583 0.2196 1.6624 100.0000 13,712,732 121,009 30,966 234,381 14,099,088 14.41 14.74 14.74 14.74

1.0264 0.9993 97.2479 0.0000 0.8620 0.2206 1.6695 100.0000 13,711,069 121,530 31,099 235,390 14,099,088 14.41 14.80 14.80 14.80

1.0308 0.9992 97.2361 0.0000 0.8657 0.2215 1.6767 100.0000 13,709,405 122,051 31,232 236,399 14,099,088 14.41 14.86 14.86 14.86

1.0352 0.9990 97.2243 0.0000 0.8694 0.2225 1.6839 100.0000 13,707,742 122,572 31,365 237,408 14,099,088 14.41 14.93 14.93 14.93

1.0396 0.9989 97.2125 0.0000 0.8731 0.2234 1.6910 100.0000 13,706,079 123,093 31,499 238,417 14,099,088 14.40 14.99 14.99 14.99

1.0440 0.9988 97.2007 0.0000 0.8768 0.2244 1.6982 100.0000 13,704,415 123,614 31,632 239,427 14,099,088 14.40 15.05 15.05 15.05

1.0484 0.9987 97.1889 0.0000 0.8804 0.2253 1.7053 100.0000 13,702,752 124,135 31,765 240,436 14,099,088 14.40 15.12 15.12 15.12

1.0528 0.9985 97.1771 0.0000 0.8841 0.2262 1.7125 100.0000 13,701,088 124,656 31,899 241,445 14,099,088 14.40 15.18 15.18 15.18

1.0572 0.9984 97.1653 0.0000 0.8878 0.2272 1.7196 100.0000 13,699,425 125,177 32,032 242,454 14,099,088 14.40 15.24 15.24 15.24

Shift Range
Shift Increment %

Max Shift Allowed

Share Percentages Levy Amounts Esimated Tax Rates

SMALL C

CLASSIFICATION OPTIONS

RESIDENTIAL EXEMPTION             COMMERCIAL EXEMPTIONPTION

ENTER A LEVY (ESTIMATED) F NECESSARY) ENTER CIP SHIFT RANGE

MassDOR - Massachusetts Department of Revenue

Division of Local Services

What If ... Scenario Worksheet for FY 2020

West Newbury - 324

46



VOTE ON THE OPEN SPACE DISCOUNT

Open Space Discount – A shift of up to 25% can be

adopted by vote of the Board of Selectmen for all

property that is classified as Open Space. This

exemption is borne by the residential classes of

properties, and will increase the residential tax rate

without affecting the Commercial/Industrial/Personal

Property classes.

21 47



OPEN SPACE TAXATION IN 
WEST NEWBURY

All classified open space is currently in Chapter 61, Chapter 61A or 

Chapter 61B.

These Chapter lands are assessed at 25% of their fair market value or 

lower.

An additional discount would not benefit West Newbury or the taxpayer.

22 48



OPEN SPACE TAXATION EXAMPLE

10 Acres of excess land at full and fair cash value is $3,500 per acre 
X 10 Acres = $35,000 Assessment.

Same Land in Chapter 61A is valued based on its soil type from the 
Farmland Valuation Advisory Commission.

Assessment in Chapter 61A:

10 Acres x $160 per acre = $1,600

23 49



VOTE ON THE RESIDENTIAL 
DISCOUNT

Grants up to a 20% Discount to Owner Occupied Residential

Properties:

Exclusions to this exemption are:

Vacant Land

Seasonal Homes

Residential Properties not occupied as a

primary residence by the owner

The impact is to the overall residential class, and shifts the 

burden from the “less expensive” properties onto the 

higher priced and non-resident homes.  Benefits would be 

to communities with a high number of vacation homes, or 

non-owner occupied properties.
24 50



VOTE ON THE RESIDENTIAL 
DISCOUNT

Summary:

Qualification Process:

Shift in Tax Burden results in a lengthy qualification

process which may delay tax bills.

Financial Considerations:

Under estimating qualified residents may result in an

overlay deficit

Over Estimating qualified residents will result in over

taxation or a surplus and risk exceeding the Levy Limit.

25 51



Minimum Residential Tax Rate

• Residential Factor of 1 would yield a single tax
rate of $14.42 per thousand of value.

• Tax Levy:

$14,099,087.54/ Value: $977,745,321 = 
(0.01442) X 1000 = Single Tax Rate: of 
$14.42

26 52



  
FY2020

 Starts:
 July 1, 2019
 Ends:

 June 30, 2020

 Property Values for FY 2020

 FY20 Average home price-$579,142

 FY20 Property Values are based on Calendar Year
2018 Sales

 Assessment Dates as of January 1, 2019

 Condition of Property as of June 30, 2019

27 53



VOTE ON THE SMALL COMMERCIAL 
EXEMPTION

The other option for the Board of Selectmen

is the granting of a commercial exemption of

up to 10% to certain small commercial

properties.

28 54



SMALL COMMERCIAL EXEMPTION

Shifts the tax rate between properties 
occupied by qualifying small businesses onto 
the other commercial and industrial 
properties.

Does not have any effect on the residential 
and personal property tax rates.

29 55



QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS 
EXEMPTION

A Property:

Must be assessed at less than $1,000,000 and employ 10 or less 
employees.

Does not have to be owner occupied.

For multi-business parcels all businesses must qualify.

30 56



QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS 
EXEMPTION (Cont.)

Must be classified as commercial or mixed use commercial.

*Industrial properties do not qualify, but
do share the tax burden if the exemption 
is adopted.

31 57



DRAWBACKS TO COMMERCIAL 
EXEMPTION

Only the commercial properties can qualify,

but the industrial class must share the burden.

The owner of the property, rather than the

business occupying the site, receives the tax

benefit.

The qualification process for the Board of 

Assessors is time consuming and cumbersome.

32 58



BOARD OF ASSESSORS WILL MAKE A 
RECOMMENDATION

The Board of Assessors recommend that the 
Select Board:

1) Vote to adopt a Single Tax Rate
2) Vote not to adopt the Open Space Discount
3) Vote not to adopt the Residential Exemption
4) Vote not to adopt the Small Commercial

Exemption

33 59



60



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: November 22, 2019 

RE:  Solid waste and recycling costs 

In preparation for the upcoming joint discussion between the Board of Selectmen and the Board of 

Health, I attended the November 19 BOH meeting which included discussion with Jason Mello 

regarding proposed solid waste hauling costs for FY21 and beyond. (The current hauling contract 

runs through June 30, 2020). 

The BOH has also received proposed pricing for solid waste disposal from Covanta. (The current 

waste disposal contract runs through June 30, 2020). 

Due to the volatility in the market, fixed per-ton pricing is not available for recycling. 

The BOH and Jason Mello will be present for Monday’s discussion, as we work to anticipate and 

budget for future solid waste costs. 

E

61

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



F

94



Commonwealth Of Massachusetts

Department Of The State Treasurer

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission

95 Fourth Street, Suite 3

Chelsea, MA 02150-2358

Jean M. Lorizio, Esq.
Commission Chairman

2020

Retail License Renewal

License Number:   00003-PK-1406

License Name :      W Newbury Food Mart Inc

DBA :                     

Municipality:   WEST NEWBURY

License Class:   Annual

License Type:   Package Store

Premise Address:               275 Main Street West Newbury, MA 01985 License Category: All Alcoholic Beverages

Manager:                 Elaine Fowler

I hereby certify and swear under penalties of perjury that:

1. I am authorized to sign this renewal pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 138;

3. The licensee has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes; and

4. The premises are now open for business (if not, explain below).

2. The renewed license is of the same class, type, category as listed above;

Additional Information: 

Signature Date

    TELEPHONE: (617)727-3040                              FAX: (617)727-1258                      http://www.mass.gov/abcc

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



1

Town Manager

 

Carr Post Committee, 
   Please find attached materials included in last Tuesday’s BOS mtg packet.  At the meeting, the Board voted to: 

‐ Approve the revised language to Sec. 8 of the Designer Selection Procedures, as recommended in my 
memo.  The updated Designer Selection Procedures are posted to the town website here. 

‐ Designate Mike McCarron, individually, as the Selection Committee.  (Mike will include input from others, 
including the Carr Post Committee, but it was recommended to name him as Selection Committee to avoid the 
additional administrative burden and associated time delays that would have resulted from posting 
requirements and meeting minutes if a multi‐person Committee was named). 

‐ Approve a selection process based on qualifications, with designer fees to be negotiated prior to contract award 
(rather than inviting designers to propose designer fees). 

   Since that time, Mike has issued the designer RFQ on the Central Register.  The RFQ documents are attached; Mike is 
also providing prospective vendors a copy of the September 2019 CPC proposal.  You’ll note within the RFQ that we’ve 
set a date of Monday, Dec. 9 at 10am for an optional on‐site inspection, with a deadline to submit proposals of Tuesday, 
Dec. 17th at 11am. 
   At their 11/12 meeting, the Board also directed that the Carr Post Building Committee Charge be revisited and revised 
to reflect that the work in the existing charge (online here) is substantially complete; and to determine what charge may 
be appropriate given that the project is now moving into active design and, eventually, construction.  The Board will 
review a draft Committee Charge at its upcoming meeting on 11/25.    

Please let me or Mike know if any questions; questions on purchasing should go to Mike. 

Thanks, 
  Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363‐1100 x111
townmanager@wnewbury.org

G

103



Request for Qualifications (RFQ)  

For  

Design and Construction Services for   

Restoration and Repairs to Historic Building (Carr Post) 

The Town of West Newbury in accordance with M.G.L. c. 7C, §§ 44-58, requests proposals 

from qualified firms for the services of a Designer related to the design services, construction 

documents and contract administration for the restoration of a national historic registered 

building commonly referred to as the Carr Post, 363 Main St. West Newbury, MA. Designer 

services will commence immediately upon award of the contract. RFQ documents are available 

on November 20, 2019 by email request to the office of Michael P. McCarron, 

mmccarron@wnewbury.org or at 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA. There will be an 

optional pre-submission informational session and site inspection on Monday, December 9, 2019 

at 10:00 AM at 363 Main St., West Newbury. Sealed responses clearly labeled “Designer 

Services, Carr Post” are due no later than Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 11:00 AM and to be 

delivered to the Office of the Town Clerk, 1910 Building, 381 Main St., West Newbury. The 

Town reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any defects, informalities and 

minor irregularities; and to award contracts or cancel this RFQ if it is in the Town’s best interest 

to do so.   

104



PART 1 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (R.F.Q.) 
RENOVATION OF BUILDING KNOWN AS CARR POST (Soldiers and 

Sailors Memorial), WEST NEWBURY, MA  
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

Invitation 

The Town of West Newbury invites proposals from firms, herein called qualified 
proposers, to complete design development, construction documents, and construction 
administration for renovations to a national historical registered building (currently 
vacant) known as the Carr Post (Soldiers and Sailors Memorial) located at 363 Main 
Street, West Newbury, MA . 

Proposal Submission Deadline – Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 11:00 am. 

Optional Site Inspection-Monday, December 9, 2019 at 10:00 am. 

Five (5) bound hard copies plus one electronic copy on USB memory drive plus an 
original signed proposal must be received by the above Proposal Submission Deadline 
sent to West Newbury Town Office Building, attn.: Michael P. McCarron, Town Clerk 
381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985. (telephone: 978-363-1100 ext 110, 
mmccarron@wnewbury.org) 

All proposals must include a completed copy of the most current Standard Designer 
Application Form for Municipalities and Public Agencies not within DSB Jurisdiction. 

Proposals not received by the above deadline will be returned unopened and will not be 
considered by the Town of West Newbury. 

Questions should be in writing and be directed to Michael P. McCarron 

Interviews 

If the Town elects to conduct interviews, the tentative week for applicant interviews is 
the week January 6, 2020. The Town may choose up to three firms who best meet the 
RFQ requirements for interviews. Proposers selected for interviews will be interviewed 
at a mutually agreed upon time at a location to be announced. The Town may request 
that the Architect bring his/her proposed sub-consultants to the interview. 

105



General Conditions 

The successful proposer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations. The Town of West Newbury reserves the right to reject all proposals, to 
waive informalities, to advertise for new proposals and to make awards as may be in the 
best interests of the Town of West Newbury.  

Proposals, reports and materials developed by the successful proposer after an award 
is made and submitted to the Town of West Newbury are considered public 
information and cannot be copyrighted. All proposals become the property of the Town 
of West Newbury, and the Town has the right to disclose information contained in the 
proposals once awards have been made. 

Contract Period 

The contract period shall be from the Notice to Proceed until certification of the 
completed project, and work on any punch list items is completed. 

Proposal Requirements 

The Architect is required to submit all of the information listed below. 

● Cover Letter
● Submission of completed (most current) Standard Designer Application Form for

Municipalities and Public Agencies not within DSB Jurisdiction.
● Name, location, size and type of organization, years in business for the

architectural firm and all consultants.
● Names and registration numbers for all partners, officers, directors and owners
● Names and registration numbers for all key personnel assigned to the project,

including Massachusetts registration numbers.
● List and contact information for all public sector design projects undertaken in the

Commonwealth of Massachusetts in the last three years including descriptive
information for projects comparable to the Carr Post project. The emphasis
should be on projects with conditions similar to those conditions listed in Part 2 of
the RFQ.

● List and current contact information for all current design projects.
● If the applicant is a joint venture, all required information should be submitted for

both joint venture partners along with the name of the firms and person who will
be the managing partner of the joint venture.

● Certification that the architect applicant meets the statutory definition of designer,
and a separate certification that the structural engineer meets the statutory
definition of a structural engineer.

● Proposed method of organizing and executing the work for the project.
● Proposed organizational chart with resumes of all key personnel

106



● Statement that the applicant certifies under the penalties of perjury that the
information contained in his/her proposal is correct.

● Amount and type of professional liability insurance for the both the architect  and
all engineering consultants.

● Certificates of non-collusion, tax compliance, and certificate of authority
(attached).

Form of Contract 

The successful designer will be required to execute the Towns’ Designer Services 
contract within ten business days of the presentation of the contract by the Town. 

Fee Negotiations 

Following completion of interviews the Town will select a first ranked designer. The 
Town will negotiate with the first ranked designer on the list of finalists. Should the 
Town be unable to negotiate a satisfactory fee with the first ranked designer, 
negotiations will be terminated and negotiations undertaken with the remaining 
designers, one at a time, in the order in which they are ranked, until an agreement is 
reached. The proposal must not contain any mention or price for cost for services. 

In reviewing proposals, the Town will use the following evaluation criteria: 

Experience and Quality of Like Work 

Proposals shall demonstrate related experience in providing architectural services in 
conjunction with related and required engineering services for public sector 
organizations. Preference will be given in the evaluation process to applicants who 
have demonstrated experience with the analysis and design of renovations to buildings 
for local government office use. 

Past Performance 

The proposal shall contain the names and contact information (including email 
addresses) of current and past public and private clients over the past three years that 
the Town may interview related to the applicants’ project performance. Preference will 
be given to applicants who have demonstrated a high degree of client satisfaction 
related to work product, client service and the ability to meet the prescribed deadlines. 

107



Staff 

The proposal shall include applicant’s intended project organization and specific staffing 
assigned to the project to include experience and qualifications in providing desired 
services. Proposers are required to identify the engineering consultants who will be 
used on the project. Preference will be given in the evaluation process to applicants 
who have staffing capabilities with demonstrated experience in the analysis, design, 
specification and construction administration/oversight for local government office 
buildings and facilities, including a detailed understanding of the Massachusetts 
Building Code, the Massachusetts Architectural Access Board requirements, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Massachusetts public building construction laws 
(Chapter 149. et. al.). 

Professional Registrations 

The proposal shall have a list of staff possessing professional registrations. Preference 
will be given in the evaluation process to the applicant with the widest variety of 
professional registrations at its direct disposal (on staff), and the level of relevant 
experience of each individual. Ideally, the team would include a registered architect, a 
registered structural engineer, a registered HVAC engineer, a registered civil engineer, 
a building code analyst and cost estimator.  All professional registrations must be 
current in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

Knowledge 

Proposers shall demonstrate their knowledge and experience with Massachusetts 
public design and construction laws and procedures, including prior successful projects 
of a similar nature. 

Project Approach 

Proposals shall include a description of the proposed approach for the work, including 
potential permitting aspects of this project. Please limit such a description to no more 
than three pages. Preference will be given in the evaluation process to applicants who 
have demonstrated experience with public building projects. 

Firm’s Capacity 

The proposer shall demonstrate the firm’s ability to undertake the project in a timely 
manner with respect to other on-going projects currently under contract by the applicant. 
The proposal shall list the specific names of individuals who will be assigned to work on 
the project and the available time each assigned person will have for the work based on 
the proposed schedule. Preference will be given to applicants who convincingly 
demonstrate, with examples, how the assigned staff is available to meet the needs of 
multiple clients concurrently, including the proposed work for the Town of West 
Newbury. 

The Town of West Newbury reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive 

108



any informalities in a proposal, or to reject the applicant’s choice of any sub-
consultant or assigned staff if the awarding authority determines such actions to be 
in the best interests of the Town of West Newbury. 

PART 2 

RENOVATION OF BUILDING KNOWN AS CARR POST, (Soldiers and 
Sailors Memorial) W. NEWBURY, MA ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & COST 

ESTIMATING SERVICES 
PROJECT SUMMARY & TASKS 

Background & Summary 

The background material for the renovation is set forth in Application for Project 
Funding Community Preservation Committee 

On November 4, 2019, the West Newbury Town Meeting approved the funding for this 
renovation of the Carr Post (Soldiers and Sailors Memorial) 

Tasks 

The successful Proposer will organize this project around TASKS as follows: 

1. Schematic drawings/preliminary design/renderings.

2. Cost estimating:

• Must include all costs for renovating the building, including permitting, site
preparation, infrastructure, owner’s project management (if required),
architectural, general contractor, filed sub bids (if applicable),
contingency, etc.

3. Complete final design

4. Complete construction documents

5. Assist in procurement/review of General Contractor

6. Assist in Construction Administration

109



PART 3 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Required Certifications

● Certificate of Vote
● Tax Compliance Certification
● Certificate of Non-Collusion

110



Town of West Newbury 

Carr Post Building Committee 

Objective 

A Town Committee charged with offering recommendations to the Board of Selectmen and 

other Town Officials in keeping with the wishes of the Town voters; and, in coordination with 

the Town Manager’s office, facilitating public communications regarding  the restoration of 

the Carr Post (Soldiers and Sailors Memorial. 

Committee Charges: 

1) To elect a chair person and to schedule meetings compliant with the Open Meeting Law at least

one a month during the design and construction phases of the project.

2) To provide feedback to the selected architect/engineering firm in order to maintain the overall

design in keeping with the wishes of the Town including the voters at fall STM 2019.

3) To evaluate the architectural drawings and specifications as they are able for discrepancies,

errors, and omissions before construction bidding.

4) To provide feedback to the design firm on maintaining the historic integrity of the restoration.

5) To recommend design changes if and as needed to ensure energy efficiency in keeping with the

historic plan.

6) At the completion of the design phase, to provide input to the Chief Procurement Officer

regarding the evaluation of cost proposals and to recommend changes or exclusion of materials

items if/as needed to keep the project within budget.

7) To prepare recommendations to the Chief Procurement Officer on the preparation of

construction bids and to provide advice regarding the selection of the general contractor.

8) To provide oral or written reports as requested to the Town at town meetings, the Town

Manager or the Board of Selectmen.

Composition (3 or 5 members total) 

Ex Officio Member 

Member (Construction/Building Design Experience) 

Member (Construction/Building Design Experience) 

Member 

Member 

Committee Member Terms:  2 years – appointed by the Board of Selectmen 

Charge Adopted by Vote of Board of Selectmen: [UPDATE] 

Duration: This Charge will be in effect through [UPDATE], except upon revision voted by the Board of 

Selectmen following the posting of proposed amendments on a Board meeting agenda. 

H

111



MEETING MINUTES

Vermont | Massachusetts www.doreandwhittier.com 

Meeting Date / Time: November 14, 2019 / 10:00 am 

Project Name:  Pentucket Regional School District Building Project 

Project Number: 17-0762

Subject: Working Group 60%CD - 2

Attendees: 

Justin Bartholomew (JB) PRSD Superintendent  

Jonathan Seymour (JS) Pentucket HS Principal 

Ken Kelley (KK) Pentucket MS Principal 

Wayne P. Adams (WA) Pentucket  

Greg Labrecque (GL) Business Manager  

Greg Hadden (GH) PRSD Facilities Director 

Jon Lemieux (JL)  Vertex 

Steve Theran (ST) Vertex 

Dena Trotta (DT) PRSD, School Committee Vice-Chair 

Lisa O’Connor (LO) PRSD, School Committee Chair 

Angus Jennings Town Manager, West Newbury 

Carol McLeod Finance Directory, Merrimac 

Denise Dembkoski Finance Director, Groveland 

Jonathan Rich (JR) W.T.Rich Company, Inc (WTR), CEO 

Kirk Balcom (KB) WTR, Project Manager 

Bill Brown Brown + Sardina  (B+S) 

Joe Strayer B+S 

Bert Comins West Newbury Conservation Agent 

Leah Zambernardi West Newbury Town Planner 

Brad Dore (BD) Dore & Whittier Architects Inc. (D+W) 

Jason Boone (JBo) D+W 

Mark Marshall (MM) D+W 

Josh Hagan (JH) D+W, Job Captain 

Nick Beck (NB) D+W 

Giovanna Chaisson (GC) D+W, Interiors 

Margaret  Daly (MD) D+W, Interiors 

Abdias Jimnian (AJ) D+W 

María Fernández-Donovan (MFD)* D+W, Project Manager 

Formatting -    ,  Attending / NOT Attending 

Agenda: 1. November 13th Building Committee outcome

2. MSBA DD Submission Update

3. Permitting Update

4. Site Plan

5. Building

6. Planning for December 10th Building Committee Meeting

7. Housekeeping items

8. Schedule

I

112

http://www.doreandwhittier.com/


p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

 Page 2 of 8 

 

ITEM ACTION BY    

1.1   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D+W 

 

 

 

 

D+W 

November 13th Building Committee Meeting Outcome 

 

Building Name-Three names for the proposed school building were voted as 

preferred to be presented to the School Committee for vote.  No action for D+W. 

 

Interior Subcommittee (IS) - The Building Committee selected two additional 

members to the Interior Subcommittee.  The working group hopes one additional 

person representing Merrimack will be added. 

 

The IS members are: 

Justin Bartholomew 

Jonathan Seymour 

Greg Hadden 

Stephanie Seeley (West Newbury) 

Emily Dwyer (Groveland) 

TBD (Merrimac) 

*Dena Trotta volunteered as back-up member 

 

It was agreed that meeting will take place at 3:30pm at D+W offices. 

D+W will send the invitation. 

 

VE List approval -  

• The Building Committee approved $2.7 million of VE items in categories 1 

and 2.  4 items were excluded. 

o VE items to remain on the project: 

▪ DW-49 Remove loading dock canopy – Rejected 

▪ DW-55 Remove Orchestra pit and lift – Rejected 

▪ DW-01A Motorized shades reduction-upper level Dinning 

Area – Rejected 

o VE item DW-35A (Remove loam and seed from the baseball field for 

future turf field, -$413K) decision was postponed to the next 

Building Committee meeting on December 10. 

▪ All members of the working group stated they felt confident 

that taking this VE item was the right thing to do as the goal 

is to have a turf field. Therefore, it makes financial sense to 

not install the grass field that would later be replaced with. 

Additionally, they are confident that there are other funding 

sources for the turf field. 

▪ The WG felt that most of the Building Committee would 

accept DW-35A as VE item.  

▪ W+D stated that the field decision can only be postponed 

until the next Building Committee meeting and not further 

than December 10. 

▪ The Design Team and the PRSD Working Group will work 

towards finding alternative VE options and funding options 

in order to help the Building Committee make the decision. 

113

ajennings
Highlight

ajennings
Highlight



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

Page 3 of 8 

ITEM ACTION BY 

o The Design Team will incorporate all approved items into the

construction documents.

Phasing drawings  (attached) were presented by WTR at the Building Committee 

meeting.  The Working Group discussed the details as follows: 

Phase 1- Spring 2020-Spring 2022 

• Temporary Parking for PRSD

o Temporary parking for High School staff and students is

consolidated and occupies +/- 60 yards of the football practice

field closest to route 113 and the adjacent recently acquired

house property. Car access would be available from route 113

and from the existing campus driveway. The existing parking at

the Middle School will remain during phase 1

o WTR will install ballasted temporary fence between the parking

area and the fields to limit the parking area.  The ballasted

fence is easily movable allowing for parking area changes as

needed and snow removal activities.

o If cars use the existing curb cuts off route 113 to enter and exit

the temporary PRSD parking lot, then buses and drop off parent

cars can go into existing driveway and out the existing exit more

efficiently.

• Temporary parking for WTR

o WTR will occupy the existing High School parking area between

the HS and Farm Lane and the land west of the existing High

School building, including the new swap land, leaving space for

circulation around the existing High School building.

o The WTR area will be fenced with 3 gates: One at front, one at

trailers and one at south of existing High School.

o The main gate located off the school entry driveway, will allow

for deliveries to the loading dock and construction area.  WTR

parking will be located between existing High School building

and Farm Lane off the main gate. A small greeting trailer will be

located at the front main gate.

o Construction trailers will be located at the west most part of the

site with limited access off Farm Lane

o WTR will provide keys to the gates to PRSD facilities to allow for

PRSD deliveries.  Signage will direct PRSD delivery people.

Communication between WTR and PRSD Facilities will be

essential.

o WTR plans to begin construction of temporary parking around

April 2020. Fence installation will likely begin in May-April

starting at the west trailer area.

• Graduation will take place at the track, away from the construction

areas, on the first Saturday in June. Temporary parking will be available

by then.

114



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

 Page 4 of 8 

 

ITEM ACTION BY    

• Snow areas: 

o The areas north and south of driveway leading up to the loop, 

east of High School, were designated as snow storage areas.  

o Area between practice field and driveway can be at north, 

where equipment would mobilized from the driveway.  

o Snow will be able to be pushed to the athletic practice fields 

from the PRSD Temporary parking areas. Practice field areas 

are too soft for heavy snow removal equipment. 

o Construction area snow will be piled at the southern area of the 

swap land. 

o In extreme snow conditions, renting a snow melter or trucking it 

off-site will be options to be considered. 

• Temporary boiler location will be between the pond and the High 

School principal’s office. Jonathan S. was made aware that it will 

generate “loud white noise”. The connections to the building will be 

installed underground into the apparatus room. 

• Temporary potable hot water will be housed near the corner of the 

existing locker room. 

• PRSD will build the new maintenance shed in the swap land before WTR 

arrives on site. 

 

Phase 2 – summer 2022-Fall 2022 

• New building will be complete.  

• The swap land will be turned over to school temporary parking, as WTR 

will take over the Middle School parking area for trailers and parking.  

• The District Offices will be relocated off site so WRT can demolish the 

Middle School.  This will need to be coordinated between WTR and 

PRSD.   

• No snow storage changes in this phases  

• Buses will circulate behind the new building for drop off. 

• Student parent drop will continue at the front temporary parking area. 

 

Phase 3 –Fall 2022 - Summer 2023 

• New parking lot will be available for new building occupants. 

• Construction work will take place at the fields and Stadium. 

• Once the Middle School is demolished, District Offices made safe and 

utilities reconnected, the District Offices occupants will move back. 

• The swap land will be resurfaced for PRSD facilities use. 

 

Phase 4 – Fall 2023 

• Repair swap land parking area 

• Punch list 

 

Brad Dore stated that in consideration for the land swap neighbors, the team 

should  inform them about the construction process. 

115



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

Page 5 of 8 

ITEM ACTION BY 

• Greg H stated that she will have a choice from 4 different fences, with

vegetation (by PRSD), she knows that the maintenance shed will be

going up not to exceed 30’ tall and that the height of High School will be

even higher.  She does not know what the swap land will be used for

during construction and she is concerned about dust.

• Justin B. will need to communicate the construction progress to her.

1.2 MSBA DD Submission update 

D+W received the MSBA DD Comments on November 8. 

All comments are minor, except for two items that D+W will try to talk to the MSBA 

for review and change.  

• The MSBA commented that the design team did a good job in making the

building more efficient and therefore classrooms sizes increased without

making the overall building larger:  Column enclosure and duct chase space

was given back to classrooms. Nevertheless, the MSBA is penalizing the

project by making 458 SF ineligible as a result.  Jason reported that he is in

the process of talking with the MSBA about it.  Although a solution would

be to make the shafts and column enclosures bigger to avoid the issue, it is

not in the spirit of improving the school design. D+W hopes that the MSBA

will change the ineligibility response.

• DESE; MSBA would like DESE application resubmitted due to library re-

arrangement.  D+W does not believe the relations ships were changed to

the extent of a DESE filing requirement.  D+W will talk about this with MSBA

to see if they will retract it.  A cover letter from PRSD with Letter from

Vertex and D+W may be needed.

D+W has a tentative call scheduled for Friday, Nov 15 to talk about these two items. 

DD Comment Responses are due to the MSBA by November 22. 

1.3 All Permitting Update 

ConCom 

November 4th  West Newbury Notice of Intent (NOI) was filed 

November 18th West Newbury ConCom meeting:    

Nitsch, D+W, WTR,  PRSD (Jonathan Seymore) and 

Vertex will attend 

December 11th Groveland ConCom meeting 

116



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

 Page 6 of 8 

 

ITEM ACTION BY    

Planning Board  

November 6th  Pre-application Conference with West Newbury 

   Planning Board took place successfully 

December 3rd   West Newbury Site Plan Review Public Hearing 

   PRSD (Jonathan S.), WTR (Kirk B.), Vertex, and D+W 

   plan to  attend. 

 

Site Plan Review Peer Review will be done by Meridian. Leah Z. asked for 

$7,200 reimbursement. WG authorized it and asked that the bill be sent to 

Vertex. 

 

1.4   

 

PRSD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D&W 

Site Plan 

 

D+W proposed the recently acquired house abatement to be handled by PRDS and 

the report to be provided to D+W’s hazardous materials consultant (UEC) for 

review. 

 

The existing UST removal is within the project scope. 

 

A meeting with Police and Fire departments needs to be scheduled to update the 

group about the construction process, emergency access, water access (hydrants) 

and other safety items during construction the before Dec 3.  Greg H. and Jonathan 

B. will talk to Mike Dwyer ahead of time. 

 

1.5   

 

D+W 

 

 

 

 

D&W 

Building 

 

Greg H. emailed the list of items that he recommends be on the emergency 

generator.  He has added the Kitchen exhaust to the list.   

The goal is for all critical systems to be on the generator so that occupants can 

remain in the building in case of power outage. 

 

Page turner meetings will be scheduled for 

• IT department 

• FF&E/Room Data sheets update 

 

1.6   Planning for the Building Committee Meeting of December 10 

• VE List update 

• Traffic consultant on site review (DW to clean up then WG 

• Interior subcommittee 

• Permit update 

• Pre-Construction Survey - January  

 

117



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

Page 7 of 8 

ITEM ACTION BY 

1.7 Brad Dore reported that a third-party document review for West Newbury is being 

proposed by the Town Manager, paid by the project, as part of the permitting 

process.  

1.8 Schedule 

D+W reported the following schedule changes: 

• 60% CD set deadline will be pushed back from 1/14/2020 to 2/4/2020.

• Cost estimates due to D+W by 2/24/2020

• 60% CD submission to the MSBA remains on 2/25/2020.

• Cost reconciliation 2/26-2/28

• Submit reconciled cost estimate to MSBA 3/3/2020

Next meetings: 

November 21, 3:30pm Interiors Sub-Committee Meeting 

December 5, 10:00am Working Group Meeting 

December 10  Building Committee Meeting 

The above notes reflect the summary of our meeting. Please contact me with any comments or corrections. 

After 10 days, we will accept these minutes as an accurate record of our discussion. 

Sincerely, 

DORE + WHITTIER 

Josh Hagan – Job Captain 

118



p:\pentucket hs - 17-0762\arch\admin\l - meeting minutes\5 - working group\2019-11-14 working group mtg cd60 

2\2019-11-14  working group mm-cd60-2.docx 

Page 8 of 8 

Attachments: Permitting Update (Schedule) 

Copy: File 

Attendees 

Building Committee, MM, MD, BT, NB, GSC 

119



11/15/2019

1

Schedule

6
0

%
 C

o
n

s
t
r
u

c
t
io

n
 D

o
c

u
m

e
n

t
s
 

11

120



TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

OFFICE OF THE PLANNING BOARD 

381 MAIN STREET 

WEST NEWBURY MA 01985 
978-363-1100 X125    Fax:  978-363-1119

e-mail:  lzambernardi@wnewbury.org

November 14, 2019 

MEMO TO: Board of Health 

Building Inspector 

Conservation Commission 

Department of Public Works 

Fire Department 

Police Department 

Water Department 

Selectmen 

FROM: Leah Zambernardi, Town Planner 

The West Newbury Planning Board will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, December 3, 2019 

at 7:00 PM in the West Newbury Town Annex, 381 Main Street, to consider the Site Plan 

Review Application for a new Pentucket Regional Middle-High School Building with related 

parking and athletic facilities, pursuant to Sections 4.B. & 8.B of the West Newbury Zoning 

Bylaw. West Newbury Assessors Map R1, Parcels 10, 20 & 30, in the Residence C Zoning 

District and Groveland Assessors Map 2, Parcel 8 in the R-2 Zoning District. Owner/Applicant:  

Pentucket Regional School District, 22 Main Street, West Newbury.  The application and plans 

are attached for your review and comment. 

The Public Hearing for this Application is scheduled for December 3, 2019 at 7:00 PM at the 

Town Annex.  Please send you comments, if any, to me by December 2, 2019.  I am available 

to meet should you have any questions.  Just give me a call.  Thank you.  

121

mailto:lzambernardi@wnewbury.org


Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: November 22, 2019 

RE:  School stabilization funding model 

I have enclosed the school stabilization model presented to the Board in April 2019. I have also 

attached the actual amortization schedule for the initial borrowing of $46,965,000 that closed in 

September 2019. The Pentucket Business Manager anticipates that the District will borrow an 

additional $42M next summer. 

The first payment on the debt service for the initial borrowing will come due in FY21. The first 

payment on the second borrowing will come due in FY22, at which point the full tax impact of the 

project will appear on taxpayers’ bills. 

I have been working on updating the model to reflect current enrollments, known and projected debt 

service, and current housing values. This is not complete, but may be by Monday night. Even if not, I 

think we can have a productive discussion. A core policy question is regarding what time period 

should the school stabilization balance be drawn down. 

J

122

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


West Newbury’s Taxes Estimated to Increase An Average of $300

You can ballpark your property tax increase by multiplying your assessed value by 
0.00051

Assumptions:
Average value home of $569,716 (October 2018)
Town Meeting will continue to contribute retiring debt to the school
stabilization fund over the life of the borrowing
Does not include projection of future non‐school debt
Total project cost of $146.3 MM

District share of $93.2 MM
West Newbury share of $24.5 MM

West Newbury annual debt service of $1.2 MM
30 year bond, with a 2.75% interest rate

West Newbury School Capital Funding 

Takes into account Final Cost Reimbursement voted by Mass. School Bldg. Authority on April 10, 2019
 This is a projec on of the poten al West Newbury impact,

 based on PRSD’s published amounts

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

0

Average Single Family 
Tax Impact

$755 total

$455
Stabil‐
ization
(Already
paying)

$300
Override
(New tax 

123



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

School Building Policy Framework

In FY16, total P&I payments (excl. Water, Septic and Dunn) were $684,000.

The rationale of the School Stabilization Fund is to maintain level budgeting for debt 
service, even as debt service is retired, with the difference being allocated to the School 
Stabilization Fund on an annual basis.

The goal of building up the School Stabilization Fund is to have a source to draw from in 
order to offset the property tax impact of an override and debt service associated with a 
proposed Middle/High School.

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19Policy Framework124



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

School Construction Cost Financing Workbook, DRAFT

Source
Construction cost 146,300,000$        PRSD, 2/13/19

MSBA share 52,700,000$           PRSD, 4/11/19

Phasing costs

District offices

District share of cost: 93,600,000$          PRSD, 2/13/19

Annual debt service 4,602,222$             30 years at 2.75% interest

Cost Share by Town
Town Capital Interest %
West Newbury 24,623,338$           11,697,840$                      26.3%
Groveland 35,780,176$           16,998,133$                      38.2%
Merrimac 33,196,487$           15,770,697$                      35.5%

93,600,000$           44,466,670$                        

Cost Share by Town, Debt Service
West Newbury 1,210,706$            
Groveland 1,759,277$            
Merrimac 1,632,239$            

4,602,222$            

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19Cost Share125



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

Pentucket Enrollment by Town

# %
West Newbury 629 26.3%
Groveland 914 38.2%
Merrimac 848 35.5%
TOTAL 2391 100%

Source: Marianne Naffah, 10/9/18

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19Enrollment126



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

West Newbury Single Family Home Values
as of 10/5/2018

Average 569,716$            

Median 531,350$            

25th percentile 433,525$            
50th percentile 531,350$            
75th percentile 651,950$            

100th percentile (highest value) 2,657,300$        

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19Home Values127



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

School Stabilization Fund Debt Service Model

FY (year‐
end)

Current Debt 
Service 
Obligations

Appropriation 
to School 
Stabilization

 School 
Stabilization 
Projected Balance 
(gross) 

Stabilization 
Spent

 School 
Stabilization 
Projected 
Balance (net) 

Base Year FY16 684,000$        
FY17 527,000$         157,000$           
FY18 406,100$         277,900$            1,250,268$             
FY19 369,000$         315,000$            1,565,268$             
FY20 362,200$         321,800$            1,887,068$             
FY21 355,400$         328,600$            2,215,668$              362,685$              1,852,983$      
FY22 313,950$         370,050$            2,585,718$              725,369$              1,497,664$      
FY23 297,950$         386,050$            2,971,768$              725,369$              1,158,344$      
FY24 ‐$                  684,000$            3,655,768$              725,369$              1,116,975$      
FY25 ‐$                  684,000$            4,339,768$              725,369$              1,075,606$      
FY26 ‐$                  684,000$            5,023,768$              725,369$              1,034,236$      
FY27 ‐$                  684,000$            5,707,768$              725,369$              992,867$         
FY28 ‐$                  684,000$            6,391,768$              725,369$              951,497$         
FY29 ‐$                  684,000$            7,075,768$              725,369$              910,128$         
FY30 ‐$                  684,000$            7,759,768$              725,369$              868,758$         
FY31 ‐$                  684,000$            8,443,768$              725,369$              827,389$         
FY32 ‐$                  684,000$            9,127,768$              725,369$              786,019$         
FY33 ‐$                  684,000$            9,811,768$              725,369$              744,650$         
FY34 ‐$                  684,000$            10,495,768$            725,369$              703,281$         
FY35 ‐$                  684,000$            11,179,768$            725,369$              661,911$         
FY36 ‐$                  684,000$            11,863,768$            725,369$              620,542$         
FY37 ‐$                  684,000$            12,547,768$            725,369$              579,172$         
FY38 ‐$                  684,000$            13,231,768$            725,369$              537,803$         
FY39 ‐$                  684,000$            13,915,768$            725,369$              496,433$         
FY40 ‐$                  684,000$            14,599,768$            725,369$              455,064$         
FY41 ‐$                  684,000$            15,283,768$            725,369$              413,694$         
FY42 ‐$                  684,000$            15,967,768$            725,369$              372,325$         
FY43 ‐$                  684,000$            16,651,768$            725,369$              330,956$         
FY44 ‐$                  684,000$            17,335,768$            725,369$              289,586$         
FY45 ‐$                  684,000$            18,019,768$            725,369$              248,217$         
FY46 ‐$                  684,000$            18,703,768$            725,369$              206,847$         
FY47 ‐$                  684,000$            19,387,768$            725,369$              165,478$         
FY48 ‐$                  684,000$            20,071,768$            725,369$              124,108$         
FY49 ‐$                  684,000$            20,755,768$            725,369$              82,739$           
FY50 ‐$                  684,000$            21,439,768$            725,369$              41,369$           
FY51 ‐$                  684,000$            22,123,768$            725,369$              0$  

21,308,400$     

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 Stabilization Model128



School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 4/14/2019

Debt Service Schedule

FY Debt Svc Due
Stabilization 
Fund Override Free Cash

Debt Service 
Due Delta

FY19 ‐$                      $                  ‐    ‐$                 ‐$             
FY20 ‐$                      $                  ‐    ‐$                 ‐$             
FY21 605,353$             $       362,685  242,668$         605,353$        ‐$             
FY22 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY23 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY24 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY25 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY26 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY27 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY28 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY29 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY30 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY31 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY32 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY33 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY34 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY35 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY36 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY37 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY38 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY39 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY40 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY41 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY42 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY43 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY44 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY45 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY46 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY47 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY48 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY49 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY50 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             
FY51 1,210,706$          $       725,369  485,336$         1,210,706$    ‐$             

36,926,531$      14,802,763$  

Sources

\\192.168.172.13\Selectmen\Selectmen\Schools\Middle‐High School Building Project\Capital Planning\School funding model updated 4‐14‐19 Debt Service129



130



131



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: November 22, 2019 

RE:  Review of Board of Selectmen policy booklet 

At its August 6, 2018 meeting, the Board voted a number of revisions to existing Board of Selectmen 

policies. Many were “housekeeping” revisions to clarify policies and to reflect the change to a Town 

Manager form of government. The enclosed booklet includes all policies as amended.  

The only new policy in the enclosed booklet is the OSHA Compliance policy approved by the Board 

on January 7th, 2019. At the time of the Board’s vote, you did not have specific language before you, 

so you are requested to verify that the language as drafted accurately reflects your intent.  

I have also proposed minor revisions to the Annual Election of Officers Policy (#2), Fuel Efficient 

Vehicle Policy (#9), and the Grant Applications Policy (#10), provided with markups for your review. 

In addition to those policies already amended, on August 6th the Board referred certain policies for 

additional staff review and comment. The following is a list of such policies, with recommendations: 

Policy Referred To: Recommendation(s) 

Events Requiring a Police Detail for 

Public Safety 

Police Chief No change. 

Public Access to Documents Drafted 

By or Mail Addressed 

To the Board of Selectmen 

Town Counsel Update. 

Meeting Minutes Town Counsel Update. 

911 Training Police Chief Repeal. 

Fair Labor Standards Act Town Counsel Pending. 

Town Employees as Fire Fighters Town Counsel Update. 

Street Opening Applications DPW Director, Water  

Superintendent, Town Counsel 

Update 

Comments have been received and were provided in the meeting packet for the February 4, 2019 

Board of Selectmen meeting. I recommend that the policies recommended for update or repeal be 

brought forward for action at a future Board of Selectmen meeting. 

At this time I respectfully request that the Board vote to endorse the enclosed policy booklet, so that 

this can be made available to staff and others. I think this will help clarify the policies in effect and 

improve my office’s ability to oversee compliance with and implementation of policies. Amendments 

may be brought forward in the future as needed. 

K

132

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


 TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

POLICIES OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Policies of the Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of February 2, 2019 

INTRODUCTION. This is a collection of policies that have been adopted by the West Newbury

Board of Selectmen and are currently in effect. The list of policies included in this booklet are listed 

in alphabetical order in the Table of Contents below. Former Board of Selectmen policies that have 

been repealed and are no longer in effect are listed at the end of the booklet. Policies currently in 

effect but excluded from this publication are listed on page 2. 

Table of Contents 

1. Agenda Items

2. Annual Election of Officers Policy

3. Ballot/warrant proof-reading

4. Certificate of insurance and signed

contracts for snow removal drivers

5. Events requiring a police detail for

public safety

6. Explanations of overtime pay

7. Fair Labor Standards Act

8. Fall Special Town Meeting Schedule

9. Fuel Efficient Vehicle Policy

10. Grant Applications

11. Grievance Policy for the General Public:

Equal Access for Facilities and Activities

12. Meeting Minutes

13. Minors

14. Naming Streets

15. Naming Town Property and Placement

of Memorials

16. Office Space in the 1910 Office Building

17. OSHA Compliance

18. Permit Fees

19. Public Access to documents drafted by or

mail addressed to the Board of Selectmen

20. Purchasing Products made of Recyclable

Materials

21. Reconciling Cash and Receivables Policy

22. Request for review of an issue by Town

Counsel

23. Requirements for Mass Electric Pole

locations

24. Reserve Fund Transfers

25. Review of new Insurance Companies

26. Review by the Town Manager of all

accidents report forms filed

27. Severe Weather Policy

28. Street Opening Applications

29. Town Employees as Firefighters

30. Tree Replacement Policy

31. Vehicle Replacement Plan

32. Warrant Articles

33. West Newbury Town Square

34. 911 Training

All Board of Selectmen policies are on file with the Board of Selectmen, and at www.wnewbury.org 

133

http://www.wnewbury.org/


              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 1 

Disclaimer: Former Board of Selectmen policies that have been repealed and are no longer in effect 
are listed at the end of the booklet. This booklet does not include the following Board Policies, 
which are in effect and published separately: 

 
Committee Handbook 
 
Designer Selection Procedures 
 
Financial Policies 
 
Lodging House Regulations, 4 Lodgers and Over 
 
Personnel Policies including: 
 Appendix A:  Affirmative Action Plan 
 Appendix B:  Safety Policy 
 Appendix C:  Commercial Driver’s License Alcohol and Drug Testing Policy 
 Appendix D:  Policy and Procedures Concerning Sexual Harassment 
 Appendix E:  E-mail, Internet and Social Media Use Policy 

Appendix F:  Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination, MCAD Guidance  
          Pregnant Workers Fairness Act 

  
 Rental of Town Facilities Policy 
 
 Special Events Policy 
 

Traffic Rules and Orders 
 
 
Town staff have applied best efforts to prepare a complete booklet of policies, including notation 
of policies not included herein. Unintentional omission of Board policies from this booklet or the 
list above does not affect the validity or enforceability of any such policies. Updates will be made 
on an ongoing basis, as needed to reflect current or new policies, and policies as may be revised. 
 
All Board of Selectmen policies are on file with the Town Clerk, and online at www.wnewbury.org  
 
 

Signed, 
 
 
 _______________________          _______________________          _______________________ 

David Archibald, Chair         Glenn Kemper                 Rick Parker 
 

West Newbury Board of Selectmen 
November __, 2019 

134

http://www.wnewbury.org/


              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 2 

1. Agenda Items 

All items for the agenda or requests to be heard by the Selectmen must be in the Office of the 
Board of Selectmen by 12:00 noon on the Wednesday prior to the following Monday meeting.    

Adopted: date unknown  

2. Annual Election of Officers Policy 
Annually each town board, committee and commission shall elect a Chairperson & Clerk at their 
first meeting after July 1st each year or by statute, regulation or bylaw.  The Chairperson will 
then communicate the vote to the Town Manager and Executive Administrator to the Board of 
Selectmen and update the town’s website. 

Adopted: 5/29/2018 

Amended: X/X/2019 

3. Ballot/Warrant Proof-Reading 
The draft of each item on the ballot of every election and every Town Meeting Warrant shall be 
reviewed for accuracy and content by the Board of Selectmen, Town Clerk, Town Manager, and 
Town Counsel before being sent to the printer.    

Adopted: 7/31/2006 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

4. Certificate of Insurance and Signed Contracts for Snow Removal Drivers 
The Board of Selectmen requires that Snow Removal Drivers who plow for the Town of West 
Newbury are required to sign the Town’s contract and to provide a Certificate of Insurance 
naming the Town as an additional insured, in the amount required by the Board of Selectmen.   

Adopted: 12/15/2014 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

5. Events Requiring a Police Detail for Public Safety 
The Town shall require all parties, excluding municipal departments, working on public ways, or 
ways in which the public has a right of access, to have a police officer on duty in cases where 
the Chief of Police, his designee, or the appointing authority deems a potential hazard to the 
safety and welfare of the public is present.  The Town shall also require that a police officer(s) 
be assigned to all public functions that involve dispensing of alcoholic beverages and any public 
function that charges its patrons for admission which in the opinion of the Chief of Police, his 
designee, or the appointing authority may pose a threat to the keeping of the peace. 

Adopted: 2/20/2007 

6. Explanations of Overtime Pay 
The Town Manager requires that Department Heads provide explanations when there are 
overtime hours on an employee’s time sheet.   

Adopted: 8/25/2014 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

135



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 3 

7. Fair Labor Standards Act 
Town employees who work over 80% of their time in law enforcement are exempt from the 
provision of the Fair Labor Standards Act in the duties as call fire-fighters and will be paid on 
the same basis as any other firefighter.    

Adopted: 9/21/1998 

8. Fall Special Town Meeting Schedule 
The Fall Special Town meeting will be scheduled between October 15 and November 15; shall 
be announced six weeks prior to the meeting date; shall have a deadline for special article 
requests at a  date to be specified by the Board of Selectmen; require that the special article 
requests must be submitted to the Town Manager and Board of Selectmen in writing by the 
deadline; and the final drafts of the Warrant should be available for review by the Board of 
Selectmen, Finance Committee, Town Clerk, Town Counsel, and Town Moderator and the Town 
Manager one week prior to posting.  For good cause or emergencies, deadlines may be changed 
by vote of the Board of Selectmen.  

Adopted: 10/14/1998 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

9. Fuel Efficient Vehicle Policy 

(See also: Vehicle Replacement Plan) 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish a requirement that the Town of West Newbury 
purchase only fuel-efficient vehicles for municipal use whenever such vehicles are commercially 
available and practicable. 
 

DEFINITIONS 
Combined city and highway MPG (EPA combined fuel economy) means the fuel economy from 
driving a combination of 43% city and 57% highway miles and is calculated as follows: 
Combine Fuel Economy = 1((0.43/City MPG)+(0.57/highway MPG)) 

Drive System means the manner in which mechanical power is directly transmitted from the 
drive shaft to the wheels.  The following codes are used in the drive field: 
 AWD= All Wheel Drive: four-wheel drive automatically controlled by the vehicle 
 powertrain system 
 4WD= 4-Wheel Drive: driver selectable four-wheel drive with 2-wheel drive option 
 2WD=2-Wheel Drive 

Heavy-duty vehicle means a vehicle with a manufacturer’s gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) 
of more than 8,500 pounds. 
 

POLICY STATEMENT 
In an effort to reduce the Town of West Newbury’s fuel consumption and energy costs the 
Board of Selectmen hereby adopts a policy to purchase only fuel-efficient vehicles to replace 
those municipal vehicles that fall under this policy (i.e., non-exempt vehicles) to meet this goal. 
 

136



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 4 

APPLICABILITY 
This policy applies to all municipal departments of the Town of West Newbury. 
 

GUIDELINES 
All departments shall purchase only fuel-efficient vehicles for municipal use whenever such 
vehicles are commercially available and practicable. 

The Town of West Newbury will maintain an annual vehicle inventory for non-exempt vehicles 
and a plan for replacing these vehicles with vehicles that meet, at a minimum, the fuel 
efficiency ratings contained in the most recent guidance for Criterion 4 published by the 
Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources’ Green Communities Division. The fuel 
efficiency ratings contained therein are based on the most recently published US Environmental 
Protection Agency combined city and highway MPG ratings for vehicles.  

Exemptions 
• Heavy-duty vehicles (GVWR > 8,500 pounds): examples include fire-trucks, ambulances, 

and some public works trucks that meet the definition of heavy-duty vehicle. 
• Police cruisers, passenger vans and cargo vans are exempt from this criterion since fuel 

efficient models are not currently available. However, we commit to purchasing fuel 
efficient police cruisers, passenger vans and cargo vans when they become 
commercially available. Police and fire department administrative vehicles are NOT 
exempt and must meet fuel efficient requirements. 

 

Inventory  
The following information shall be included in a vehicle inventory list and said list shall be 
updated on an annual basis and provided to the Green Communities Division: 

Model Make Model 
Year 

Drive System 
2WD, 4WD, 

or AWD 

Year/Month 
purchased 

>8,500 
Pounds? 

Y/N 

Exempt? 
Y/N 

MPG 
Rating 

Vehicle 
Function 

         

NOTE: MPG may use EPA combined MPG estimates or actual combined MPG. 
 

FUEL EFFICIENT VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PLAN 
The Town of West Newbury shall have a Fuel-Efficient Vehicle Replacement Plan that outlines 
the process by which the Town of West Newbury will replace vehicles with fuel efficient 
vehicles and review said plan on an annual basis. 

All non-exempt vehicles shall be replaced with fuel-efficient vehicles that adhere to the most 
recent Green Communities Criterion 4 Guidance. Vehicles shall be replaced when they are no 
longer operable and will not be recycled from one municipal department to another unless the 
recycled replacement vehicle meets the fuel efficiency ratings outlined in the Policy. In addition, 
when replacing exempt vehicles, the function of the vehicle will be reviewed for potential 
replacement with a more fuel-efficient vehicle, including a fuel-efficient non-exempt vehicle.  
 

QUESTIONS/ ENFORCEMENT  
All other inquiries should be directed to the Board of Selectmen. This policy is enforced by the  

137



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 5 

Chief Procurement Officer on behalf of the Board of Selectmen. 

Adopted: 10/15/2013 
Amended X/X/2019 

 

10. Grant Applications 
Department Heads and Committee/Board Chairmen shall advise the Board of Selectmen and 
the Town Manager of any grant applications that the Department/Board/Committee may be 
considering.  This requirement is made to allow the projection of future Town cost effects and 
staff time commitments that could result from the award of any grant we receive.    

Before submitting any applications for grants, a summary, the Request for Proposals, and a 
submission schedule should be submitted to the Board of Selectmen and the Town Manager. 
 

Adopted: 10/17/1994 
Amended 8/12/1997; 8/6/2018; and X/X/2019 

 

11. Grievance Policy for the General Public: Equal Access to Facilities and Activities 
Maximum opportunity will be made available to receive citizen comments, complaints, and/or 
to resolve grievances or inquiries.  

STEP 1:  The Town Clerk or Assistant Town Clerk will be available to meet with citizens and 
employees during business hours.  

When a complaint, grievance, request for program policy interpretation or clarification is 
received either in writing or through a meeting or telephone call, every effort will be made to 
create a record regarding the name, address, and telephone number of the person making the 
complaint, grievance, program policy interpretation or clarification.  If the person desires to 
remain anonymous, he or she may.  

A complaint, grievance, request for program policy interpretation or clarification will be 
responded to within ten working days (if the person making the complaint is identified) in a 
format that is sensitive to the needs of the recipient, (i.e. verbally, enlarged type face, etc.)  

Copies of the complaint, grievance, request for program policy interpretation or clarification 
and response will be forwarded to the appropriate town agency (i.e. park commission, 
conservation commission).  If the grievance is not resolved at this level it will be progressed to 
the next level.  

STEP 2:  A written grievance will be submitted to the ADA Coordinator. Assistance in writing the 
grievance will be available to all individuals. All written grievances will be responded to within 
ten working days by the ADA Coordinator in a format that is sensitive to the needs of the 
recipient, (i.e. verbally, enlarged type face, etc.)  If the grievance is not resolved at this level it 
will be progressed to the next level.  

138



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 6 

STEP 3:  If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved, citizens will be informed of the 
opportunity to meet and speak with the Board of Selectmen, with whom local authority for 
final grievance resolution lies. 

Adopted: 4/22/1997 

12. Meeting Minutes 
In an effort to comply with the provision of the Public Records Law requiring that minutes be 
available for public review, all minutes are to be provided to the Town Clerk after they are 
approved.  The Town Clerk shall maintain a central file where minutes will be readily available 
for public inspection during regular office hours.    

A draft of minutes should be available by the next regular meeting of any board or committee, 
approved or revised at that meeting, with final approval at the second regular meeting.  They 
should be promptly filed in the Town Clerk’s Office where they become public record and are 
not to be removed from the Office or revised in any way.  Any necessary revisions must be 
made at a subsequent meeting and recorded in the minutes of that meeting. 

Adopted: 7/23/1996 
Amended: 9/9/2003 

13. Minors 
No person under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be appointed to serve on any committee 
or board of the Town of West Newbury; and no person under the age of eighteen (18) years 
shall be permitted to operate any motorized equipment, water craft, or vehicle owned or 
controlled by the Town of West Newbury.    

Adopted: 8/14/1998 

14. Naming Streets 
When a preliminary plan comes before the Planning Board with a proposed street name, that 
name shall be submitted to the Board of Selectmen for their information and input.  The 
Planning Board either directly or through its staff shall also consult with the Police Chief, Fire 
Chief and EMA Director to ensure that the proposed street name is adequately different from 
existing street names in order to facilitate prompt response in the event of emergency. 

Adopted: 12/12/1994 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

15. Naming Town Property and Placement of Memorials 
It is the policy of the Board of Selectmen that the naming of publicly-owned property shall be 
done sparingly, for good cause shown. 

Request for naming of any public property, such as buildings, rooms within buildings, 
playgrounds, recreational facilities, squares, parks and other public facilities shall be considered 
at an advertised public hearing before the Board or Committee responsible for operating the 
facility. 

139



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 7 

There will be a separate process for the naming of Conservation Lands.  The name will be 
established as part of the process for approving the Management Plan. 

The Board or Committee shall then refer a suggestion or suggestions to the Board of Selectmen 
with a record of the hearing and a Committee recommendation for approval.  If the facility is 
not under the jurisdiction of a Town Board or Committee, the request shall be referred to the 
Board of Selectmen who shall hold said public hearing before making a decision. 

It is the policy of the Board of Selectmen that the renaming of a property be done very 
sparingly, for compelling reasons.  Renaming of a property already named for a person or family 
shall be undertaken only by Town Meeting. 

It is the policy of the Board of Selectmen that public ways and public buildings and facilities 
shall not be named for living persons.  Further, public ways shall not be given common first 
names such as “Jill’s Way” or “Ruth’s Street”. 

It shall be the policy of the Board of Selectmen that the placement of memorials for a deceased 
Town resident or to commemorate a significant regional or national event or to commemorate 
the history and contributions of an ethnic or racial group within the Town of West Newbury 
shall be done very sparingly, for compelling reasons.  Memorials shall only be allowed for 
deceased residents who have made a significant contribution to the community. 

Before any permanent memorial may be placed on Town property, the proposed site shall be 
reviewed by the Police, Fire and Department of Public Works for any public safety issues.  
Approval of the memorial shall require a vote of the Town Meeting. 

Adopted: date unknown  

16. Office Space in the 1910 Office Building 
The Town Manager is sole arbiter of space allocation in the building. 

Adopted: 2/27/1995 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

17. OSHA Compliance 
The Board of Selectmen voted to adopt a policy to direct that, in accordance with newly 
established statutory requirements effective February 1, 2019, that all Town Departments 
(including but not limited to DPW, Police, Fire, Water, Library, Town Office, Council on Aging 
etc.) shall be organized to comply with OSHA standards and requirements; and further to 
authorize the Town Manager to oversee compliance with this policy, establish procedures, and 
assign responsibilities to personnel as necessary to achieve this objective. 

Adopted: 1/7/2019 

18. Permit Fees 
With the exception of large projects such as the School renovation project and the Housing 
Authority’s construction project, Inspection Department fees shall be waived for Town 
Departments.  Permits shall be required but the fee shall not be charged.   

Adopted: date unknown  

140



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 8 

19. Public Access to Documents Drafted by or Mail Addressed to the Board of Selectmen 
The Board of Selectmen voted to adopt a policy stating that no mail or document addressed to 
or drafted by the Board of Selectmen shall be considered public property until the Selectmen 
have received and reviewed it as a Board in a public meeting.   

 Adopted 8/25/2003 

20. Purchasing Products made of Recyclable Materials 
Voted to establish a policy to buy products of recyclable materials in lieu of virgin products 
whenever possible, and when recycled products are available at comparable and competitive 
cost. 

Adopted: 9/28/1998 

21. Reconciling Cash and Receivables Policy 
Two of the largest assets for a community are cash and receivables. Information pertaining to 
these is kept by the Treasurer/Collector and the Town Accountant. A Treasurer is the custodian 
of revenues, tax titles, and tax possessions, while a Collector keeps listings of outstanding 
receivables due to the Town, and the Town Accountant is responsible for maintaining the 
accounting records. Prompt and frequent reconciliations between them are essential in order 
to maintain control and insure checks and balances are in place. 

It is the policy of the Town of West Newbury that within thirty days after the end of each 
month, the Treasurer/Collector shall internally reconcile the cashbook to all bank statements, 
and the Treasurer/Collector shall internally reconcile all receivable balances with the receivable 
control. The results of these activities shall be forwarded to the Accountant’s office and 
compared to the general ledger records. If differences are determined, the Treasurer/Collector 
and Accountant shall reconcile the variances (e.g. missing information, errors and timing 
differences), with a copy of this final reconciliation forwarded to the Town Manager. 

Adopted: 5/29/2018 

22. Request for Review of an Issue by Town Counsel 
Any request by a Department Head to have Town Counsel review an issue must be approved by 
the Town Manager. Any request by a Board/Commission/Committee to have Town Counsel 
review an issue must be approved by Chairman of the Board of Selectmen.  If the Chairman is 
unavailable, another member of the Board may sign the request form. 

Adopted 11/6/2009 
Amended 8/6/2018 

23. Requirements for Mass. Electric Pole Locations 
On all petition plans the location of all utilities, including water lines and siren boxes, as well as 
all trees within the public way or on the boundary thereof shall be included.  Public hearings 
shall be held prior to the approval of removal of any of these trees. 

Adopted: 11/26/1998 

141



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 9 

24. Reserve Fund Transfers 
Departments and Committees all must follow procedure of submitting their request to the 
Board of Selectmen for approval, and then to the Finance Committee for approval. Reserve 
fund transfers made by the Finance Committee must first go to the Board of Selectmen, and 
transfers made by the Board of Selectmen must still be approved by the Finance Committee. 

Adopted: date unknown 

25. Review of New Insurance Companies 
The Town Manager is authorized to review requests from new insurance companies and decide 
whether to consider them or not. 

Adopted 11/6/2009 
Amended 8/6/2018 

26. Review by the Town Manager of all Accident Report Forms 
All Accident Report Forms filed involving property damage or personal injury of Town vehicles 
or Town employees will be submitted to the Town Manager as soon as possible after the 
accident, forwarded to the MIIA Claims Department, and reviewed at the next meeting of the 
Board of Selectmen. 

Adopted:  9/18/06 
Amended 8/6/2018 

27. Severe Weather Policy 
The West Newbury Board of Selectmen recognizes that severe weather may make it unsafe for 
staff to travel to work. While this is unavoidable for essential personnel (such as emergency 
personnel and highway department personnel) the Board has instituted this policy so non-
essential personnel can avoid unsafe conditions.  This policy applies to administrative and office 
staff at the Town Offices and Library. 

Essential personnel include Police, Fire, EMA, Dispatch, and Highway Departments whose work is 
necessary for public safety.  Department heads will designate essential personnel in these 
departments. 

After considering advice from at least the DPW Director and Police Chief, the Town Manager 
shall decide whether Town offices will be closed to the public or if there should be a delayed 
opening or early closure.  If the Town Manager decides that there should be a closure, delayed 
opening or early closure, he or she shall notify the Board of Selectmen, and will notify the 
Selectmen’s Assistant who will call or text Department Heads, based on advance agreement of 
notification method among staff.  Department Heads will contact the employees in their 
departments to notify them of conditions of closure.  The Selectmen’s Assistant will promptly 
notify residents via local media outlets, Town website, and social media.  The Library Director 
will post such notices with regard to closures of the Library. 

Under certain conditions, including severe weather, the Town Manager may direct employees not 
to report to work, delay arrival to work, or to leave work early.  In these instances, employees shall 
be compensated for scheduled work hours. 

142



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 10 

If offices are not officially closed or delayed from opening, employees who feel that the roads 
are not safe for travel may choose to use vacation or personal time equal to the time missed.  
Once the roads are cleared, employees should make a reasonable effort to safely report to 
work.  Department Heads must be informed about the employee’s intended plans for coming in 
or staying home as close to the normal opening time as possible.   

If conditions develop during the work day and no decision is made to close early, any employee 
who feels they need to leave before conditions worsen should do so and will be required to use 
vacation or personal time or to make-up the time at a later date approved by the Town 
Manager.  If the building is closed because of the decision of the Town Manager, employees will 
receive their normal pay for the balance of the day. 

Any employee who is already scheduled for vacation time, sick time, or otherwise not 
scheduled to work during the affected period of time is not eligible to be paid under this policy.  

Any other aspects or decisions affecting a delay or closing not covered in this policy will be at 
the discretion of the Town Manager. 

Adopted: 1/20/2011 
Amended 10/29/2018 

28. Street Opening Applications 
Applications must be submitted with a site plan showing the correct location of the driveway, 
existing trees within the public way or on the boundaries thereof, stone walls, bound stones, all 
utilities including water lines and siren boxes, grading back to original undisturbed ground, and 
2’ contours.  Said work must be done within one year from date of permit.  The plan becomes 
part of the permit.   Application, permit, and plan are to be in the possession of the contractor 
at the site at time of construction.  The permit does not provide authorization for the removal 
of trees.  

Any stones removed from stone walls to be used for repair of existing stone wall and/or to 
finish off driveway.  Contractor to locate and mark and/or replace as necessary any bound 
stones.  Other conditions may be imposed by the Supt. Of Streets and/or Board of Selectmen.    
(Comments from Director of DPW and Supt. of Water Dept. should be added.) 

Adopted: 12/14/1998 

29. Town Employees as Firefighters 
In order to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act, it was decided that Town Employees who 
also respond as call firefighters will not be additionally compensated for response to calls 
during their regular working hours.  They will receive their regular Town hourly rate for these 
calls.  Town employees who respond after hours and on weekends will be paid at one and one-
half times a blended rate of $18.43* per hour (or current training rate) and their hourly Town 
rate.  This overtime rate will be used for hours worked over 40 hours per week, including drills. 

Adopted: date unknown 

30. Tree Replacement Policy 
Annual appropriation to be request to replace shade trees  

143



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 11 

Trees removed by Town or by the State on Route 113 to be replaced unless suitable specimen-
type trees already exist in vicinity of removal: 

On Town property if it will not interfere with roadway, overhead utilities, etc.  Care shall 
be taken to avoid planting near roads because of salt and chemical contamination and 
traffic hazards; 

or 

Request permission of abutting land-owner to plant tree on property line.  

Tree Warden to maintain list of all trees taken down.  

Balance of funds to be used annually to plant trees along Main Street beginning in the Square 
and Town roads to replace trees taken down in previous years. 

Mass. Electric requirements for pole locations:  On all petition plans, the location of all utilities 
including water lines and siren boxes, as well as all trees within the public way or on the 
boundary thereof shall be included.  Public hearings shall be held prior to the approval of 
removal of any of these trees.    

Adopted: 5/27/1997 
Amended: 11/26/1998 

31. Vehicle Replacement Plan 
(See also: Fuel Efficient Vehicle Policy) 
 

Overview 
The Town of West Newbury’s Vehicle Replacement Plan applies to all departments within the 
Town of West Newbury. All departments shall replace all vehicles with fuel-efficient vehicles as 
described in the Town of West Newbury’s Fuel-Efficient Vehicle Policy, adopted on October 15, 
2013.  

Replacement Process  
Whenever a vehicle has reached the end of its useful life, the Town of West Newbury will 
examine the expected use of a replacement vehicle and choose one that best fits the intended 
use and meets the requirements of our policy of procuring the most fuel-efficient vehicle 
available. We will review the most recent Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources, 
(DOER), Green Communities Division guidance for Criteria 4 and adhere to it in the process of 
replacing any vehicle.  

All non-exempt vehicles shall be replaced with fuel-efficient vehicles that meet the fuel 
efficiency ratings detailed in Town of West Newbury’s fuel-efficient vehicle policy, which 
stipulates adhering to the most recent energy efficiency guidance as provided by DOER’s Green 
Communities Division. Vehicles shall be replaced when they are no longer operable and will not 
be recycled from one municipal department to another unless the recycled replacement vehicle 
meets the fuel efficiency ratings outlined in the Policy.  

Annual Review  

144



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 12 

This Vehicle Replacement Plan shall be reviewed by the Town on an annual basis, as stipulated  
in Town of West Newbury’s Fuel-Efficient Vehicle Policy. 

Adopted: date unknown 

32. Warrant Articles 
When writing warrant articles, the dollar amount should be requested rather than “a sum of 
money.” 

Adopted: 9/12/1994 

33. West Newbury Town Square 
No solicitations on the street are allowed in the West Newbury Square, in the business zone. 

Adopted: 3/7/1995 

34. 911 Training 
For Auxiliary Police, Reserve Police, Dispatchers, and full-time Police Officers:  No candidates for 
these positions will be hired until he/she has successfully completed dispatch 911 training at 
such candidate’s own expense, on such candidate’s own time.    

Adopted: 8/10/1998 
Amended: 8/6/2018 

 
 

 

  

145



              Policies of the West Newbury Board of Selectmen REVIEW DRAFT of November 22, 2019 

Page 13 

Board of Selectmen Policies Repealed 

 

The following policies were repealed by the Board of Selectmen: 

APPROVAL OF FACILITY REQUEST FORMS: 

Selectmen’s Assistant is authorized to approve routine Facilities Request Forms as long as 
availability, insurance, and cost have been accounted for.   

Adopted 11/6/2009 
Repealed 08/6/2018 

NEW HIRES: 

No candidates for auxiliary police, reserve police, dispatch or full-time police officer will be 
hired until he/she has successfully completed dispatch 911 training at such candidate’s own 
expense on such candidate’s own time. 

Adopted 8/10/1998 
Repealed 8/6/2018 

VACATION NOTICE AND NOTICE OF OTHER TIME AWAY:  

All Department Heads are required to provide written notice of the dates to be absent and 
delegation of authority to the Board of Selectmen, stating the limits of responsibility where 
applicable. 

Adopted 4/11/1994 
Repealed 8/6/2018 

The topics above are now addressed elsewhere in Town policy. 

 

146



PROPOSED APPROVED AMENDMENTS TO CPC GUIDELINES, DRAFT #1, 

November 7, 2019 

J. Nelson, CPC Administrator

1. Amend the title of the document to “Requirements, Guidelines, and Applications”.

2. Add a Section 4.A.:  Timelines for Filing Applications:

       The CPC has established the following timelines for filing Applications in order to allow 

time to receive, review, research and make a decision on Applications filed with the Committee. 

Annual Town Meeting and Spring Special Town Meeting: 

Town Bylaws Section XX, Town Meetings/Elections states that the business meeting shall be 

held on the Monday preceding the first Monday in May.  The CPC meets on the third 

Thursday of each month.  The CPC requires that Applications for the Annual or Special 

(Spring) Town Meeting be filed by January 7, 2020 for the April 27, 2020 Town Meeting, 

and on January 2 of each subsequent year for each of those years’ April Town Meetings.  See 

the following table as an example: 

Town Meeting 

Date 

By January 2 of 

the new year 

Filing Deadline 

April 27, 2020 January 27, 2020 

April 26, 2021 January 2, 2021 

April 27, 2022 January 2, 2022 

April 24, 2023 January 2, 2023 

Special Town Meeting (not held in conjunction with the Annual Town Meeting) 

A Special Town Meeting is convened at the will of the Board of Selectmen, and we cannot 

specify a date certain for a Special Town Meeting.  In order to provide the CPC time for 

review, articles for a Fall Special Town Meeting must be submitted to the CPC by July 1no 

later than 9 calendar days prior to the third Thursday of July. 

Approved by Community Preservation Committee by 6-0 vote on Nov. 21, 2019 

L

147



1

GUIDELINES AND APPLICATION FORMS 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY   
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE (CPC)  

GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT SUBMISSION 
(Excerpt from Community Preservation Plan, February, 2019) 

1. Proposals may be submitted for projects involving Community Housing, Historic
Preservation, and Open Space and Recreation.  See the Community Preservation Plan
for a chart of eligible uses.

2. Application forms are available at the CPC Office in the Town Office Building, 381
Main Street, or on the town website:  www.wnewbury.org.

3. Each project request must be submitted to the CPC using the Application for Project
Eligibility form as a preliminary Application.  Eight (8) copies of the Application should
be submitted for distribution to the CPC.  An electronic form should also be submitted by
e-mail to cpc@wnewbury.org

4. The Committee will review Applications at a regularly scheduled meeting.  Once the
project has received preliminary approval for eligibility from the CPC, the Applicant will
be asked to complete and submit the Application for Project Funding.   Eight copies of
the Application should be submitted for distribution to the CPC.  An electronic form
should also be submitted by e-mail to cpc@wnewbury.org.  The CPC reserves the right
to reject Applications which are not complete.

5. Requests must include a statement of purpose, identify the need to be answered, and be
documented with appropriate supporting information.  The use of maps, visual aids and
other supplemental information is encouraged.

6. Applicants must be present at a CPC meeting to answer questions.  The CPC will inform
the contact person when the project will be discussed by the CPC.

7. Applicants must meet with and seek support from the committees or commissions which
deal with the type of Application submitted, i.e. community housing, historic
preservation, or open space and recreation. Applicants are to meet with relevant boards
and/or committees to obtain feedback from them as to how the proposal fits into their
master or other plan, and other relevant plans and/or policies.  The Applicant is urged to
obtain letters of support for the project from the entity with oversight.

148

http://www.wnewbury.org/
http://www.wnewbury.org/


2

8. Obtain quotes for project costs whenever possible.  If not available, estimates may be
used provided the basis of the estimate is fully explained.

9. If the request is part of a multi-year project, is to be developed in phases, or the project is
part of a long range conceptual plan, please include the total project cost, allocations, and
timelines.

10. For Applicants with multiple project requests, please prioritize projects.

11. Requests are accepted throughout the year.  Applications will be reviewed and if
approved, will be placed on the Warrant for the next or a future Town Meeting.  The CPC
reserves the right to defer timely Applications if additional study is warranted.

12. The Committee may require, as a condition for funding, the recording at the Registry of
Deeds of preservation restrictions on restored or acquired historic resources, conservation
restrictions on preserved or acquired land, and/or deed restrictions on affordable housing
projects.

13. For each project, please consider the following factors, as applicable.  A project need
only address the pertinent factors in a specific category:

Acquisition, creation and preservation of open space/recreation: Open space includes land 
protecting scenic vistas, forested land, land protecting wells, aquifers and recharge areas, fields, 
and land for active or passive recreational use including playgrounds and athletic fields for 
noncommercial sports, trails, parks, and community gardens. Community Preservation funds 
may be used to protect open space by outright purchase or by extinguishing or limiting 
development rights through the purchase of permanent Conservation or Agricultural Preservation 
Easements or Restrictions and where a property interest is acquired a permanent Restriction will 
be recorded.  

“Recreational use”, active or passive recreational use including, but not limited to, the use of 
land for community gardens, trails, and noncommercial youth and adult sports, and the use of 
land as a park, playground or athletic field. “Recreational use” shall not include horse or dog 
racing or the use of land for a stadium, gymnasium or similar structure. Rehabilitation/restoration 
such as capital improvements, extraordinary repairs to make the resource functional, and 
compliance with The Americans with Disabilities Act are allowable uses of CPA funds, under 
the open space/recreation category.   

 Acquisition, preservation, rehabilitation and restoration of historic resources: Historic 
resources are defined as a building, structure, vessel or real property that is listed on the State 
Register of Historic Places or has been determined by the West Newbury Historical Commission 
to be significant in the history, archaeology, architecture or culture of West Newbury.   
Community Preservation funds may be used for the preservation, restoration and rehabilitation of 
historic resources, but not for routine maintenance. Investment in historic resources must be 
protected by a permanent Historic Preservation Restriction where an interest in property is 
acquired.  

149



3

Creation, preservation and support of community housing: Low income (less than 80% of 
the area-wide median) and moderate income (less than 100% of the area-wide median) housing 
for individuals and families, including low or moderate income senior housing. Community 
Preservation funds may be used for low interest loan programs to income-eligible first time 
home buyers, for financial assistance to income-eligible homeowners, for gap funding, to match 
state or federal low-income housing grants, or for other support of community housing. The 
Town’s investment in community housing not owned by the Town must be protected by a 
permanent Affordability Restriction.  

Applicants should familiarize themselves with the applicable Zoning and General Bylaws 
and these can be accessed on the Town website. Please include the following with ALL copies 
of the Application for Funding:  

 Proof of ownership or control of the site, structure, or subject of Application
 Proof of authorization by the public agency, board, committee, or any entity governed by

a board, trustees, corporation etc., showing a vote by the entity to submit the Applications
and take responsibility for the project.

 If the project involves public property, provide verification that the applicable public
agency or department supports the project as presented and will oversee the project if
funded.

 Assessor’s map showing location of the Project
 Photographs, including aerial photographs if available.
 Recent written estimates of construction and maintenance costs with detailed scope of
 work
 Proposed oversight and management plan for the Project
 If the project involves a historic resource, please provide evidence (date of listing on the

state register or a letter from the West Newbury Historical Commission confirming its
determination of significance) with the application that it meets these criteria

Include the following, if applicable and available: 
 Architectural plans and specifications, for new construction or rehabilitation
 Maps, renderings, site plans
 Historic structures report, existing conditions report
 Names and addresses of project architects, contractors and consultants
 Budgets
 Letters of Support

Please keep in mind that there are legal limitations on the use of CPA funds. Additional 
information on the Community Preservation Act can be found at 
http://www.communitypreservation.org/index.cfm  

If you are in doubt about your project’s eligibility, after consulting these sources, you are 
encouraged to contact the CPC and informally request an opinion.  

Please submit the Application and accompanying documentation to: 
West Newbury Community Preservation Committee 

381 Main Street  

150

http://www.communitypreservation.org/index.cfm
http://www.communitypreservation.org/index.cfm


4

West Newbury MA  01985 978-363-
1100 X131 cpc@wnewbury.org  

December, 2013, Revised May, 2016 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
Community Preservation Committee  

APPENDIX TO Guidelines for Project Submission 
Time and Cost Estimates 

September 21, 2017 
Section 3. of the Community Preservation Bylaw, General Bylaw XXXVI, requires that  
Recommendations to Town Meeting shall include a fully developed time and cost plan.  This 
Appendix to the Community Preservation Committee’s Guidelines for Project Submission will 
address requirements for a fully developed time and cost plan.  You are encouraged to meet with 
the Community Preservation Committee to discuss a project and these requirements prior 
to submitting an Application for Funding.  

1. Prepare a Scope of Services/Work to be Performed.  The Scope of Services/Work to be
Performed will be used as the basis to obtain estimates so you will have an idea of how
much money you need to request for CPC and Town Meeting approval.

Scope of Services should include: (where applicable)
..Introduction and Information, Including The Purpose of the Project, and location
..Background:  Prepare a brief description of the Project, including address. Give any
history that is relevant to the project, background, note prior work performed, etc.
..Request an estimate which should be detailed and include all work, supplies, upgrades
needed in order to reach your goal.  See example below.

2. A detailed Scope of Services should be prepared and submitted to at least one qualified
professional in order to obtain an estimate for these services required.

3. If plans or detailed drawings are needed, you may use available funds, other sources, or
apply for CPA funds for this preliminary work to be done.   This would then become a
Phased Project.

4. Following your receipt of plans, detailed drawings, etc., submit a final Scope of Services
to at least one qualified professional in order to receive an estimate to perform the work.
This would become Phase II of the project.

5. Your Scope submitted should include a request from the professional for timing of the
project, i.e., duration of time from approval of project to finish.  This can vary greatly
from project to project depending on permitting, weather, access to records, etc.  A
detailed timeline with anticipated times for various stages of the project should be
provided.  For example:

Preparation and signing of contract:        30 days  
Applying for and receiving permits:      120 days  
(Note that if Site Plan Review, state permits, or local permits such as from 
Conservation  Commission, Historical Commission, etc. approvals are 
required, these should all be calculated into the timeline) 
 Ordering and receipt of supplies:   30 days 
Duration of project to completion:   90 days 

151



5

TOTAL:       270 days 

6. Estimates from a qualified professional must be detailed enough for the CPC to
determine what is to be done.  If the estimate is based on the Scope of Work, then the
estimate should include line items for work to be performed as outlined in the Scope of
Work, and all items should tie in.

7. All Scopes of Services and Estimates from Qualified Professionals should be submitted
with your Application for Funding to the CPC.

8. The CPC may suggest a Contingency Amount to be included in your proposal in order to
handle unforeseen expenses.

9. If a project is very large in Scope, you may be required to budget for and hire an Owners
Project Manager (OPM) as part of your proposal.

SAMPLE SCOPE OF SERVICES  
Preservation of a Town-owned building which is in disrepair.  Located at XX Address, West  
Newbury MA.  The building has been deemed historically significant by the Historical 
Commission.  The building is two-story, wood frame, clapboard siding, consisting of 
approximately 2600 square feet.  The building is 100 years old and there is evidence of some rot 
around windows and doors.  Some of the windows have been boarded over.  The handrail for the 
front steps is broken, and the steps need to be replaced.  The building needs to be painted in 
order to preserve the exterior and the frame.  Photos of the building are attached.  Please itemize 
the following:  
LABOR  
Powerwashing, number of people and hours x hourly rate:  
Scraping, sanding, caulking, number of people and hours x hourly rate: 
Painting, number of people and hours x hourly rate:  
Repairs, number of people and hours x hourly rate:  
TOTAL ESTIMATE FOR LABOR:  
MATERIALS  
Materials such as caulking, lumber, railing, etc:  
Disposal and/or Demolition Charges:  
Gallons of paint required for building:  
TOTAL ESTIMATE FOR MATERIALS:  
TOTAL, LABOR AND MATERIALS:  
Please contact NAME_______________________________  at PHONE________________ or  
EMAIL_____________________________________ to arrange a site inspection.       

152



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: November 22, 2019 

RE:  Request for authorization to waive 15-day notice and confirmation process and to  

authorize the Town Manager to appoint the Building Inspector and DPW Experienced 

Operator positions 

Pursuant to Sec. 10 of the Town Manager legislation (Chapter 97 of the Acts of 2017) (emphasis 

added): 

SECTION 10. 

(a) The town manager of the town of West Newbury shall appoint and may remove all

department heads as the term may be defined in the town departmental and organizational 

structure and any other employees for which a method of selection is not provided in this act or 

by law.  

(b) Appointments or removals made by the town manager pursuant to subsection (a) shall be

effective 15 calendar days from the date of the filing of a written notice of the appointment or 

removal with the board of selectmen, unless the board of selectmen vote to reject such 

appointment or removal. The board of selectmen may waive the 15-day period and allow the 

action of the town manager to take immediate effect. 

As you know, we have posted the job ads and job descriptions for the Building Inspector and DPW 

Experienced Operator positions. We are in the process of reviewing candidates and scheduling 

interviews. 

In the interest of filling these positions as soon as practicable, I respectfully request that the Board 

vote to authorize me to make this staff appointment pursuant to my authority under Sec. 10(a), and to 

waive the requirement for notice to the Board and delayed effectiveness of such appointment. 

With this approval, I could be in a position to extend an offer, and because this offer would not be 

conditioned upon subsequent Board action, the selected candidates could feel comfortable providing 

notice to their present employer so as to expedite their hire. 

As with any appointment, any offer I would make would be conditional upon reference checks and a 

CORI check, which my office would oversee. And, all new employees are subject to a 90-day 

probationary period under the Personnel Policy. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

M

153

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Acts (2005)

Chapter 184

AN ACT ESTABLISHING A DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS IN THE TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in 
General Court assembled, and by the authority of the same, as 
follows:

SECTION 1. There shall be in the town of West Newbury a 
department of public works under the jurisdiction of the board 
of selectmen. The department shall have charge of and 
responsibility for the management of public works operations 
of the town not assigned to other departments of the town, 
including, but not limited to, the following: highway, park and 
recreation construction and maintenance; tree and moth; 
building and grounds maintenance at municipal buildings, 
excluding the school department but including the GAR 
memorial library; and other related construction and operations 
assigned from time to time by the board of selectmen when 
considered necessary or desirable. 

154



The board of selectmen may make all policy decisions relating 
to the department of public works except those reserved to the 
trustees of the GAR memorial library and the park and 
recreation commission, respectively. 

SECTION 2. The board of selectmen shall appoint a director 
of public works, who shall recommend to the board of 
selectmen all employees of the department of public works. 
The compensation of the employees shall be set in the same 
manner as for other employees of the town, except as provided 
in section 5. 

SECTION 3. The director of public works shall supervise and 
direct the operations and employees of the department of 
public works. The director of public works shall be especially 
qualified by education, training, and experience to perform the 
duties of the office and shall have such other qualifications as 
the town may from time to time provide. While employed by 
the town, the director of public works shall hold no elective 
office, nor engage in any other business or occupation, relating 
to public works unless approved in advance by the board of 
selectmen. Nothing in this section shall prevent the director of 
public works from serving on special ad hoc committees in 
order to represent the department of public works. 

155

ajennings
Highlight



SECTION 4. On the effective date of this act, the appointed 
position of highway superintendent, tree warden, and moth 
superintendent in the town shall be abolished, and its powers, 
duties, responsibilities, and compensation shall be transferred 
to the director of public works. 

SECTION 5. A person in the regular permanent full time or 
part time service or employment of the town shall not forfeit 
rate of compensation, grade, step, or time of service on account 
of the establishment of the department of public works. Each 
such person shall be retained in a capacity as similar to the 
person's former capacity as is practical. A collective bargaining 
agreement, contract, or liability in force on the effective date of 
this act shall not be affected by this act. 

SECTION 6. This act shall take effect upon its passage. 
Approved January 5, 2006. 

156



Town of West Newbury 

Board of Selectmen 

Minutes of Meeting – DRAFT 

Monday, November 4, 2019 

Town Offices Annex 

ATTENDANCE 

Board of Selectmen David Archibald, Glenn Kemper, Richard Parker 

Town Manager  Angus Jennings 

Others in Attendance Jennifer Walsh 

The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Chairman David Archibald. 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

A. Review of draft motions for Special Town Meeting

Angus Jennings noted that the motions as drafted were unchanged with the exception that

Wendy Reed will make the motion for Article 6.  The Town Manager provided supplemental

back up for articles to be presented by the Board of Selectmen to assist with providing

information to the voters as questions arise.  It was noted that the issue of parking at Carr Post

will likely be discussed on Article 10.  Parking on the State road is not presently authorized;

however, there is potential to pursue authorization by MassDOT to allow on-street parking. This

would need to be a petition to the State and would likely require changes to roadway geometry,

striping and/or signage.

Motion was made, and seconded, to accept motions for Special Town Meeting as drafted.

Yes 3, No 0

B. Finalize Board of Selectmen report for Article 1 of Special Town Meeting

The Board reviewed the plaque that will be presented to Mary Harada in recognizing her as FY20

Citizen of the Year. Selectman Kemper also brought flowers to be presented as well.

C. Review request for authorization to apply for MIIA FY20 Property Grant (due Nov. 8th)

Motion was made, and seconded, to authorize the application of MIIA FY20 Property Grant.

Yes 3, No 0

Motion was made, and seconded, to adjourn the meeting at 6:50 p.m. 

Yes 3, No 0 

Respectfully submitted, Jennifer Walsh 

P

157



Town of West Newbury 

Board of Selectmen 

Monday, October 28, 2019@ 7pm 

 

381 Main Street, Town Office Building 

www.wnewbury.org 

Minutes of Meeting – DRAFT 

 
 

 

Meeting called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Chairman David Archibald. 

 

Attendance: Board of Selectmen – Full Board 

  Town Manager Angus Jennings 

  Assistant to the Town Manager & Finance Department – Jennifer Walsh 

  Town Clerk/Town Counsel – Michael McCarron 

  Jennifer Solis   

 
Announcements: 

• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the 
local cable channels and on the internet. 

• Informational meeting regarding Pentucket Middle/High School project, Wednesday, Oct. 30 at 

7:30PM 
• Sale of historic, decorative Chairs at Town Hall, Saturday, November 2, 10am to 2pm 
• Special Town Meeting, Monday, November 4, 2019 at 7pm 
• A Capella Night! Northeastern's Nor'easters. Saturday, November 23 at 7 PM, Pentucket High 

School 
• Opportunities for FY20 Committee appointments posted online at 

https://www.wnewbury.org/board selectmen/pages/2019-20-volunteer-opportunities 
 

Regular Business 

A. Introduction of new staff person Jennifer Walsh, Assistant to the Town Manager & Finance 

Department 

 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager introduced Jennifer Walsh to the Board.  He summarized 

Jennifer’s duties and responsibilities in her position. 

 

B. Halloween 2019: trick-or-treating guidelines 

 

The Board wishes to remind the citizens that Trick or Treat will be held Thursday evening during 

the hours of 5:00 to 7:00 p.m.  Light colored clothes and flashlights are recommended.  Also 

recommended was the use of bug repellent for safety. 

 

C. Special event permits: Myopia Hunt Club (November 12 and November 19, 2019) 

 

Motion to approve the special permit was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by 

Selectman Richard Parker. 

158

http://www.wnewbury.org/
http://www.wnewbury.org/board


 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 

D. Update on Middle/High School design process, anticipated permitting timelines, neighborhood 

meeting 

 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager gave a summary of the project.  Minutes of Meeting and 

Permitting Update are contained in the agenda packets.  There is a vacancy on this committee.  The 

Board of Selectmen will post a meeting on November 4, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. to fill this vacancy as 

soon as possible. 

 

 

E. Review of Bridge Street Speed Report prepared by DPW Director Wayne Amaral 

 

The report and a recommendation letter from the DPW Director are contained in the Agenda 

Packets. 

 

Motion was made by Chairman David Archibald, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper to 

petition the Massachusetts Department of Transportation to reduce the Speed Limit to 35 

MPH. 

 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 

F. Review of Church Street Speed Report prepared by DPW Director Wayne Amaral 

 

The report and recommendation letter from the DPW Director are contained in the Agenda 

Packets. 

 

Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 

petition the Massachusetts Department of Transportation to reduce the speed limit to 25 MPH 

on the approaches and 35 MPH. 

 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 

G. Update on CPC recommendation regarding proposed article and funding structure for Soldiers 

& Sailors Memorial Building 

 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager provided a summary of the funding sources for this project.  

The reports and Bonding Debt Service Schedule are contained in the Agenda Packets.  

 

Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker that 

$141,100.33 be funded from the Community Preservation Historic Resources Reserve, 

$108,899.67 be funded from the Community Preservation Undesignated Fund Balance and 

$1,250,000.00 be bonded for 20 years at a rate of 2.5% interest. 

159



Selectman Kemper then rescinded his motion. 

 

In favor of Rescinding Motion 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 

fund this project as follows: 

 

$141,100.33 from Community Preservation Historic Resources Reserve 

$108,899.67 from Community Preservation Undesignated Fund Balance 

$1,250,000.00 to be Bonded for 20 years  

 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

H. Presentation ofFY20 Tax Recap Model and estimated tax rate based on different levels of 

potential Free Cash transfer - Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

  

Angus Jennings, Town Manager presented the reports to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Department of Revenue for the certification of the Fiscal Year 2020 Tax Rate.  Copies of this report are 

contained in the Agenda Packets.  After discussion of several scenarios of transfer amounts from Free 

Cash to reduce the Tax Rate the following motion was made: 

 

 

 

Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker supporting 

a transfer of $400,000.00 from Free Cash to reduce the Tax Rate. 

 

         Yes 3, No 0. 

 

I. Review of draft motions for Special Town Meeting 
 

The Draft of the Special Town Meeting Articles is contained in the Agenda Packets.   
Angus Jennings, Town Manager noted that Article 2 should contain a dollar amount of $11,500.00. 

He also reminded that the time of the meeting is 7:00 p.m.   
  

J. Review of Conservation Restriction for Drake's Landing development 

 

A copy of the Conservation Restriction legal document, communication from the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs and 

related communication are contained in the Agenda Packets.  Town Clerk/Town Counsel 

Michael McCarron updated the Board on the progress of this project.   

 

Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Chairman David Archibald to 

approve the signing of the Conservation Restriction upon the execution of the other parties.  

 

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

160



K. Meeting minutes: September 30, 2019; September 23, 2019. 

 

Motion was made by Chairman David Archibald, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 

approve minutes of September 23 and September 30, 2019 meetings. 

 

Yes 3, No 0. 
 

Town Manager Updates 

L. Discussion of timeline for FY21 budget policy guidance and budget process 

 

Memo from Angus Jennings, Town Manager with a Budget Schedule and dates are contained in the 

Agenda Packets.  After discussion it was determined that Angus and the Board would discuss this 

item further at the November 12, 2019 meeting. 

 

M. Update on retiree health insurance rates for calendar year 2020 

 

The rate schedule for Retirees is contained in the agenda packets.  Angus anticipates meeting 

again in February regarding the rates for active employees.  The recommendation for the rate 

increase for active employees will be 7% for Fiscal 21. 

 

N. Update on proposed Reserve Fund Transfer: Page School food steamer 

 

Memorandum from Angus Jennings, Town Manager and the Finance Committee are contained in 

the Agenda Packets.  Discussion took place regarding items that are the responsibility of the Town 

and which are the responsibility of the Pentucket Regional School District.  Policies and agreements 

are outlined in the Town Manager’s memorandum.   

 

0. Active project updates 

P. Follow up meeting assignments 

Q. Placing items for future agendas 
 

Suggested items are as follows: 

 

1.)  Meet with Wayne Amaral to discuss basement utilization. 

 

2.)  Electric Vehicle Charging Stations and grant opportunities through National Grid. 

 

3.) Signage and enforcement on Whetstone Street. 

 

4.) Memorial Day Parade Policy 

 

Michael McCarron to forward a draft to the Board to begin the process. 

 

 

 Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to adjourn the 

meeting. 

  
Yes 3, No 0. 

 

161



Meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, Mary DiPinto 

 

 
 

 

162



Town of West 
Newbury Board of 

Selectmen 
Tuesday, October 15, 

2019 
381 Main Street, Town Office 

Building  

Minutes of Meeting- Draft 

 
Meeting called to order at 7:08 p.m. by Chairman David Archibald. 
 

Announcements: 

• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the local 
cable channels and on the internet. 

• Bicentennial Closing Ceremony: Sunday, October 20, 1-4:30 PM, Training Field 
 Program contained in meeting packets. 

• Sale of historic, decorative Chairs at Town Hall, Saturday, November 2, 10am to 2pm 
 Information contained in meeting packets. 

• Special Town Meeting, Monday, November 4, 2019 at 7pm 
• A Capella Night! Northeastern's Nor'easters. Saturday, November 23 at 7 PM, Pentucket High 

School 
• Mass DPU approval of National Grid request to increase electric base distribution rates 

  Information contained in meeting packets. 
• Opportunities for FY20 Committee appointments posted online  

Regular Business 

A. Discussion of Halloween 2019 and trick-or-treating guidelines including BOH updates regarding 
EEE 

Board of Health Memorandum contained in meeting packets.  Final decision to be made at 
October 28, 2019 meeting for most up to date information. 

Motion by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper 

Yes 3, No 0 

 
B. Request for release of performance guarantee, off-site paving related to Sullivan's Court. Thomas 

Neve 
 
Memorandum of Town Manager and DPW Director approving work completed satisfactorily 
contained in meeting packets.  Original amount deposited was $30,000.00; amount accrued 
today (original amount plus accrued interest) $30,123.87. 
 

163



Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker. 
 
Yes 3, No 0. 
 

C. Review of proposed warrant articles for Special Town Meeting 
a. Proposed CPC articles: Kitchen and Bath Modernization at West Newbury Housing 

Authority properties (Hills Court, Boynton Court)-Tracy Watson, WNHA 
Executive Director 
 
Tracy Watson, Executive Director of the West Newbury Housing Authority updated 
the Board of Selectman of the High Leverage Asset Preservation Program Grant 
application and discussion took place as to the Kitchen and Bathroom remodeling.  
The authority is also seeking a joint grant with Amesbury, Merrimac, and 
Newburyport for a Regional Services Coordinator (Social Worker).  

D. 7:30 PM Joint meeting with the Town Moderator, Finance Committee, Town Counsel and  

Town Manager to review the 2019 Fall Town Warrant and Meeting set for November 
4, 2019 

 

A draft of the Special Town Meeting Articles is contained in the meeting packets.   

Finance Committee votes also contained in packets. 

 

Article 2:  Steele Landfill testing 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0,  Sunet:  End of FY22. 
  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, Seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to  

  Recommend this article. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 Article 3:  Steele Landfill Interceptor Trench 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0, Sunset end of FY21 

  Motion made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Chairman David  

  Archibald to set the sunset date of this item to FY21. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard 
Parker to recommend this article. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Article 4:  High Hazard Tree Removal 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0, Sunset end of FY20. 

  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  

  Parker to recommend this article. 

   Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Article 5:  Salter Unit 

164



  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0, Sunset end of FY20. 

  Motion by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Richard Parker to recommend  

  this article. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Article 6:  Library Air Quality 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0, Sunset of FY 20. 

  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  

  Parker to recommend this article   

  Yes 3, No  0. 

 

Article 7:  Library Rug and Duct Cleaning  

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0, Sunset of FY 20. 

Selectman Vote:  Yes 2, No 1 (David Archibald opposed) with a Sunset date of  

FY20. 

 

Article 8:  CPA funds for Housing Authority Bathroom and Kitchen Renovations. 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 4, No 1, Abstain 1,  Sunset of FY24.   

  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  

  Parker to recommend. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

Article 9:  Julian D. Stelle Historical Marker 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0. 

Motion by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to  

recommend.   

Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 Article 10:  Carr Post   

 Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 1, No 5.   

  Motion by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Richard Parker. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 Article 11:  Unemployment Expense 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0. 

  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  

  Parker to recommend. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 Article 12:  Current Tax Rate Reduction 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Did not vote 

  Motion made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn  

165



  Kemper to recommend. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

 Articles 13-16:  Zoning Cleanup Language 

  Finance Committee Vote:  Yes 6, No 0 on all items. 

  Motion made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn  

  Kemper to recommend. 

  Yes 3, No 0. 

 

E.  Announcement of upcoming vacancy on Parks & Recreation Commission; method of  

appointment of Interim Commissioner 

 Discussion regarding means of seeking interested applicants and posting same on 

 Town Website volunteer opportunities. 

  

F.  Vote to establish West Newbury Tree Committee Gift Account pursuant to MGL 

c.44s.53A 

 Motion made by Selectman Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  

 Parker to establish the West Newbury Tree Committee Gift Account  

 pursuant to MGL c. 44, s. 53A. 

 Yes 3, No 0. 

 
G. Request for authorization to submit grant application - Tree Committee 

 Memorandum and copy of Tree Grant application contained in packets.   
Fred Chanania, Chairman of the Tree Committee answered the Board questions  
regarding the grant application. 

 Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  
 Parker to support applying for the Tree Grant. 
 Yes 3, No 0.   
 

H. Consider support letters for proposed legislation 
 Memorandums requesting support contained in packets.   

Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 
support the School Transportation Bill. 

 Yes 3, No 0. 
Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 
support the Combined Sewer Overflow Bill. 

 Yes 3, No 0. 
I. Execution of  Conservation Restriction for Drake's Landing development 
  Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard  
  Parker to table item until the October 28, 2019 meeting for further information. 

 

166



J. Vote to sign warrant for Special Town Meeting on November 4, 2019 
 Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker 
 To sign the Warrant for Special Town Meeting November 4, 2019. 
 Yes 3, No 0. 

K. Disclosure of appearance of conflict of interest 
 Discussion took place regarding the disclosure of potential conflict of interest.  
 Angus Jennings Town Manager and Michael McCarron Town Counsel answered  
 questions regarding this issue.  Town Counsel stated that he would like to see  
 the language of the disclosure regarding this issue prior to answering further  
 questions.  Angus reported that it was represented to his office that the work was  
 done on an emergency basis and permits were filed afterward.  At this time all  
 required paperwork and permits related to the roofing repair have been filed  
 with the Inspectional Services department. It was agreed that Selectman Kemper  
 would file a disclosure of potential appearance of conflict of interest due to a  
 Town employee having provided volunteer labor on his personal time to repair a  
 roof. 
 

L. Meeting minutes: September 30, 2019; September 23, 2019. 
 Tabled 

Town Manager Updates 

M. Stormwater (MS4) Year 1 Annual Report submitted to EPA and MassDEP on Sept. 30, 2019 

A copy of the report is contained in the meeting packets.  Informational.  This report  

Was filed by the September 30, 2019 due date. 

N. Update on Harbor Committee vendor contract to study potential to establish mooring field 
Informational.  A copy of the Proposed Preliminary Design Consulting Service is also in 
the agenda packets. 

0. Update on proposed Reserve Fund Transfers 

Manager Jennings updated the Board regarding the failure of a steam cooker at Page 

School and the proposal submitted to Finance Committee to fund a replacement unit 

from the Finance Committee reserve account. 

P. Update on Middle/High School design process, anticipated permitting timelines, neighborhood 
meeting 

A permitting schedule for West Newbury and Groveland boards is contained in the packets.   

Angus reported that the Conservation Commission would be viewing the delineation of 
wetlands on Friday, October 18, 2019. 

 
Q. Update on revisions to Building Inspector job description; job posting 

An updated job description for the Building Inspector position is contained in the 
meeting packets. 

R. Execution of grant for Phase 2 of Historical Commission property survey 
A copy of the Historic Sites Survey is contained in the meeting packets. 
 

167



        S.  Active project updates; Follow up meeting assignments; and Placing items for future agendas 
 
Chairman David Archibald had a request for an additional agenda item.  This request is for the 
Myopia Hunt Club for a Special Permit for October 26, 2019 for a Fox Hunt.   

 Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to 
add this item to the agenda (this item was not anticipated when the agenda was posted). 

 Yes 3, No 0. 
 
 Motion by Chairman David Archibald, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper to approve  
 the Special Permit. 
 Yes 3, No 0. 
 
Motion made to adjourn the meeting by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Chairman 
David Archibald.   
Yes 3, No 0. 
Meeting adjourned at 10:18. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Mary DiPinto 
  

 

168


	-11_25_2019 Agenda draft v2 (002)
	CPC guidelines_apps_excerpt_6_3_2019.pdf
	GUIDELINES AND APPLICATION FORMS
	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY
	COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE (CPC)
	GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT SUBMISSION

	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY
	Community Preservation Committee
	September 21, 2017

	SAMPLE SCOPE OF SERVICES
	LABOR
	MATERIALS
	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY
	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY
	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY


	Classification_Hearing_FY2020 final.pdf
	TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY�Fiscal Year 2018�Classification Presentation
	PURPOSE OF THE CLASSIFICATION HEARING
	Slide Number 3
	OVERVIEW OF THE REVALUATION & CLASSIFICATION PROCESS
	Slide Number 5
	What Happens At The Classification Hearing 
	ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
	Slide Number 8
	FOUR CLASSES OF PROPERTY
	YOUR TAX RATE
	LEVY LIMIT
	OVERRIDES AND DEBT EXCLUSIONS
	WHAT IS NEW GROWTH?
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	NEW GROWTH TRENDS
	Board of Selectmen
	SELECTION OF THE RESIDENTIAL FACTOR
	HISTORIC TAX RATES
	VOTE ON THE OPEN SPACE DISCOUNT
	OPEN SPACE TAXATION IN �WEST NEWBURY
	OPEN SPACE TAXATION EXAMPLE
	VOTE ON THE RESIDENTIAL DISCOUNT
	VOTE ON THE RESIDENTIAL DISCOUNT
	Minimum Residential Tax Rate
							FY 2018
	VOTE ON THE SMALL COMMERCIAL EXEMPTION
	SMALL COMMERCIAL EXEMPTION
	Slide Number 29
	QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS EXEMPTION
	QUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS EXEMPTION (Cont.)
	DRAWBACKS TO COMMERCIAL EXEMPTION
	BOARD OF ASSESSORS WILL MAKE A RECOMMENDATION
		THE ASSESSORS OFFICE-FY2018
	HISTORIC TAX RATES PP.pdf
	HISTORIC TAX RATES

	Blank Page




